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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (“Group”) are one of the world’s largest circular knitted fabric
manufacturers, providing vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. In addition
to its core business of manufacturing and sale of knitted fabric which generates majority of the total revenue, the
Group’s product range also includes garments. As a major knitted fabric supplier to garment manufacturers in over
40 countries that supply apparel products including sportswear, casual wear, sleep wear and inner wear to many
internationally renowned retailers and brands, Fountain Set's worldwide sales reached HK$6.33 billion (US$817
million) in the financial year 2016.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings)
Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative
offices in 5 countries and a global staff force of approximately 9,900.

Since June 2012, Chinatex Corporation has become the largest shareholder of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited.
Chinatex Corporation will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, which is state wholly-owned
enterprise established in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
To learn more about Chinatex Corporation, please visit www.chinatex.com
To learn more about COFCO Corporation, please visit www.cofco.com
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29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
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www.fshl.com
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Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited
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BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
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Fountain Set (Hold Limited ol
ity el B (R A) BRA R Bk CRPIREE £ BIRA A

Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
. , - Vietnam Representative Office
Knitting & Dyeing §t &% & Sales of Dyed Fabrics &% # & BEEE (N WAARA A4
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REDEESHUDAERAT ERARAF \ : -
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BEEE G MABRAF#

PRODUCT'ON FAC'L'TY ° ié%ﬁﬁﬁ TRAD'NG OFFICE L ;ﬁ%&éﬁ _

Garment Manufacturing #.7X Sales of Dyed Fabrics 575 &

Dong Guan Fuyi Apparel Co., Ltd. Fountain Set Limited _
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Ningbo Y Top G s Co.. Lid Fountain Set Limited
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Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd Hiway lextiles Limite - BEAARSEHA

BEAREKERAA BEGHMERAF

Oceanstar Textiles International Limited
Sakarta B SRS RERERAA
Garment Manufacturing 87X Triumph Luck Limited
P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang SEARAR

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

PREBEAWETNEXBBZEX - HERE HUEBHRE-



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited

Annual Report 2016

FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

M RREHER

HKSMil B E#E T HKSMIl B &% T
Operating Results HEEE
Revenue EEE 6,328.7 6,653.1
Financial Performance BERE
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AARIEE NEGRT 127.9 99.9
Profit margin BHE 2.0% 1.5%
Earnings per share (HK cents) FHRAF (BI)
- Basic —EAR 10.6 8.3
- Diluted —B8 10.6 8.3
Dividends BE
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BERRE#RN 2 REREER)
Per share (HK cents) iz (B 5.3 4.0
Dividend payout ratio RELLE 50.0% 48.2%
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12A31H R2015%12H31H
HK$Mil & E/E T HKSMil B2 & T
Financial Position at Year End REERERZ2HBEMRR
Net current assets REEEFE 1,962.0 1,913.0
Total assets BERE 5,371.6 5,430.6
Non-current bank borrowings ERBDRTEE 179.5 159.2
Total bank borrowings BRTEE 667.6 653.8
Net bank borrowings RITfEEFE (210.9) (223.4)
Total liabilities BEZE 1,918.0 2,035.8
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE(BL) 2.74 2.68
Capital expenditure BARREY 256.5 118.3
Financial Statistics B #
Return on equity (%) BEEHE (BRL) 4.3% 3.8%
Consolidated tangible net worth GRFANEE 3,067.8 3,019.3
Consolidated total bank debt to consolidated tangible 434 #R1TEBHEAEENEE L
net worth 0.2 0.2
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated FARRITEREHANBHEANE
interest expense % L 17.9 134
Consolidated current assets to consolidated BeEnSEESGRERBEEL
current liabilities 2.2 2.1
Inventory turnover period (days) FEREH(A) 92 83
Trade and bills receivables turnover period (days) EXREBREKFERES(R) 70 72
Trade and bills payables turnover period (days) EERERENFEREH(B) 50 53
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Note: In August 2012, the Company changed its financial year end date from 31 August to 31 December. Hence the figures for
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEE=

AEEBERAVRFRE M BERBE (I
BB AMMEEZRAMBEWR)HINT - 1t
BEY THBREBRRERMBHRRZ 8D -

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the last five financial
year, as extracted from the respective published audited consolidated
financial statements, is set out as below. This summary does not form part of

the audited consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FmEBRER
For the For the For the For the For the
16 months ended year ended year ended year ended year ended

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

BZ012F EZ2013F EZ2014% EZ2015% B220165F

12A318 F16(E A 12R31R ILEE 12R31RIHEE 12R31R L EE 12A31AILEE

HK$000 F% 1 HK$000 F% T HK$000 F% T HK$000 % T

Revenue BEE 9,167,089 6,942 807 6,891,133 6,653,051 6,328,714

Profit/(loss) before taxation BEARF/ (E8) (333457) 86,398 123829 152,207 168,068

Income tax G (4,304) 14,290 (28,068) (24,133) (18,076)

Profit(loss) for the yearfperiod saR /HHET/ (BB (337,761) 100,688 9,761 128074 149,992
Attributable to: FEfS

Owners of the Company KRREEA (324,167) 91,304 90,590 99,860 127,903

Non-controlling interests FERER (13,594) 9,384 5171 28,214 22,089

(337,761) 100,688 95,761 128,074 149,992
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #&Z&8BikRE

At At At At At

31 December 2012 31 December 2013 31 December 2014 31 December 2015 EEFRVENI @IS
RO12F12A31H  M2013F12A31H  M2014512A318  R2015612A310 RAdlE:3VERIT:
HK$000 F&T HK$000 FT HK$000 T HK$000 F T HK$'000 F /&7

(Note) (i)

Non-current assets FRBEE 2,023,461 1,867,767 1,789,197 1,707,950 1,738,318
Current assets MBEE 3,996,634 4,264,878 3,776,536 3,722,604 3,633,297
Current liabilities TBARE 2,532,214 2,271,639 1,957,936 1,809,609 1,671,279
Net current assets ROEEFE 1,464,420 1,993,239 1,818,600 1,912,995 1,962,018
Total assets less current liabilities BEELERRYEE 3,487,881 3,861,006 3,607,797 3,620,945 3,700,336
Non-current liabilities FnBaE 308,101 582,359 282,174 226,189 246,691
Net assets EEFE 3,179,780 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756 3,453,645
Capital and reserves EAR G

Share capital R 240,609 240,609 862,211 865,716 865,716

Reserves i 2,769,113 2,876,611 2,320,317 2,364,829 2,432,336
Equity attributable to owners RRREE AEGRER

of the Company 3,009,722 3,117,220 3,182,528 3,230,545 3,298,052
Non-controlling interests RS 170,058 161,427 143,095 164,211 155,593
Total equity EneE 3,179,780 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756 3,453,645

Note: Certain reserves were transferred to share capital according to the requirement under 77 : EBD EHEIRIEN2014F3 A3H £RNFEE22EFH A
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622 with effective from 3 March 2014. ARG 2 ERBERAN - FBERNREMBRERW
Details of which is set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. 30A °
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RIARRE

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
EHEX (KB)ERLA

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

XHFE RE/RABRB BB

1 Vice President Membership China Knitting Industrial Association
2l REA REH B TERE

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IEEEASEBRAAE

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by
XHFs RE/REFERE BBy
1 2015 Key and Major Enterprise of Jiangyin* Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist
2015 E TR MERFHEE Party of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s
Government
RETREME IRWmARBN
2 2015 Outstanding Enterprise of Fire Safety Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Management* Industrial Development Zone
2015FEHEM TRk EEE TIREEMBRNEXRERERELZES
g 2015 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign Investment* Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
2015F ENEIR B o b Committee of Communist Party of China

PHRTREHRMEXRERTHELZR S

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone

TERMRNEXHERERELZE S

4 2015 Top 100 Star Enterprise* Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist
2015 EARAEDRE Party of China, Jiangyin Municipal People's
Government

RHTEME IR HARRLT
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RIERRE

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEASBERLA

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

XHFs REBZEFER BB

5 2015 Top 30 International Enterprise* Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government
2015%F3058 7N E 1B % LT A R AT

6 China National Textile And Apparel Council Testing China National Textile And Apparel Council Testing
Certificate* Center*
RES ST ERSSRAPORAES BT EBSgRAHO

7 AEO Certificate Nanjing Customs District People’s Republic of China
AEORFEREZE P ANREFERER G

8 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-TextE#4100* TESTEX AG, Iy =41 &k A& 7 ATt

9 ISO 50001:2011 Energy Management System Ever Win Quality Certification Center
Certificate* I REBEREREFR D

EREEBEAREERS
10 Environmental Management System Certificate* Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd

iﬁkﬁiigﬂz\wuﬁngﬂ%

LRFEHREERBEERAR
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RERRE

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

B EEAMERL T

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by
XHFs REZEER BB
1 Work Safety Standardization Second Class Enterprise Jiangsu Province Administration of Work Safety*
(textiles)* IHELEEEEEETER
TEEEEENL B (L)
2 Laboratory Certificate Agreement Intertek Group
mERRIEE REEEE
3 Certificate of Accreditation Bureau Veritas Group
mERAIEE 4 e BBR A B Ak ()
4 Mill Qualification Program Intertek Group
& 5 7R 7 =T &l REEH
5 Outstanding Entry-level employee’s Party Organization*® Administration Committee of Yancheng Economic and
SEEEEALE Technological Development Zone*
ERcERNRAERTEEZES
6 OeKo-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
OeKo-Tex #Z# 100 * TESTEX AG, Im T4 &8 E FT*
7 2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Safety Production* Management Office of Yancheng Economic-
2016F ELEHEETESEE Technological Development Zone and Integrated Duty-
Free Area*
H G ERITAERFERNEERRAE
8 2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Fire Safety Management*  Fire Brigade of Public Security of Development Zone of

2016F EH E 2 B TIELEREE

Yancheng City*
LA NS A kNS

10
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RIERRE

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
REDPHBBHBODREERDA

No.

Name of Award/Certification

Issued by

XHFs REFZEER BBy
1 2015 Top Five Enterprise in Annual actual export of Chinese Communist Party Shatian Town Committee/
Shatian Town & Humen Port* People’s government of Shatian Town/Chinese
WHE - RPIB2010FEERE O AR Communist Party Humen Port Working Committee/
Management Committee of Humen Port*
RHRDHEZE /) HEARBMN/AEEPIBIE
ZEE/RMBEEZES
2 Model Enterprise of China Exports Leading Indictor* General Administration of Customs of the People’s
REISNE O SR AR BUELD) BRABR S Republic of China
REARENBEGHEES
3 Membership* China Dyeing and Printing Association
gBBEA REEIRAITHGE
4 Environmental Management System Certification China Great Wall Quality Assurance Centre
REEHEERARIERE KRB ERAF O
— GB/T24001-2004 ISO 14001-2004 Standard
5 OeKo-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
OeKo-Tex 2% 100* TESTEX AG, Im == 45 & 48 7€ P
6 OeKo-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
OeKo-Tex 1Z % 100# TESTEX AG, ¥y =45 &4 i Pir*
7 Outstanding Entry-level employee union committee General Union of Shatian Town and Humen Port*

SFHEEETISLZES

PHRBEMBETE

11
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RERRE

Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
REDPHBESHBODREERADA

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

XHFs REBZEFER BB

8 OeKo-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
OeKo-Tex 1= 100* TESTEX AG, I = 45 & 48 7€ P

9 AEO accredited Enterprise Certificate (Advanced Huangpu Customs of the People’s Republic of China*
accredited Enterprise)* i A R EF B =I1EER
AEORBENXEFE (ARRBELHE)

10 Guangdong Province Enterprise of Observing Contract Guangdong Province Administration For Industry &
and Valuing Credit Commerce
BREFEREFEACERE BREIETHRERR

11 Sustainable Textile Production (STeP) Certification TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
A FFE A B A 2 (STeP ) RF&E TESTEX AG, iy & 47 &k g2 2 AT

12 2016 China Knitting Functional (Multi-functional) China Knitting Industrial Association
Product Excellence Award* PR ET RS
20167 Bl st Ak T8 (ZIhEE1E) EmE S 5

13 2015 Guangdong Province Outstanding Enterprise of Guangdong Textile Association
Textile industry for efficiency achievement activities* EREHERS

2015 ERAMBMITEMENIZ B LELE

12
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RIERRE

OCEAN LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
BAEEF (RAN)BRAH

No. Name of Award/Certification Date of Issue Issued by

XHFs REFZEFER fE% A BB

1 Express Laboratory Certification Express 12/1/2016 Express Laboratory
EREZFE!

2 OHSAS 18001: Manufacture of Piece Dyed, Stripe & Printed 19/2/2016 Swiss Accreditation
Weft Knitted Fabric for the International Market In T RE
OHSAS 18001: Hf £ & - (R A ENTE B Rt m A 238
(BEBRm%)

3 L brands Gold Laboratory Certification 20/2/2016 L brands & Intertek Group
L brands Ec EREHEE" L brands & K& B

4 Boden Laboratory Approval 1/3/2016 Boden New British
Boden & B =4t " Boden 7 HE#

5 ISO14001 Manufacture of Piece Dyed, Stripe & Printed Weft 21/3/2016 Bureau Veritas Group
Knitted Fabric for the International Market WA B B A B e [
ISO14001 B & 6 - IRAUFNENIE 42 47 SR E £ ) B3
(BB T%)

6 George Laboratory Certification Scheme 10/5/2016 George & Intertek Group
George BER ERE 27 George & RK*EE B

7 next Laboratory Accreditation Certificate 22/5/2016 Next Retail (UK) Ltd

j==21 S 27 S 5
next ERR EREEE

13
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
RERRE

OCEAN LANKA (PRIVATE) LIMITED
BEEF (RA)BRAH

No. Name of Award/Certification Date of Issue Issued by
XHFs REBZEER ERAH BHEN
8 Laboratory Certification Level C Program 27/6/16 Columbia Sportswear &
BERECHREE Intertek Testing Services
=T b 58 38 B AR S R AROA
AR 75
9 Laboratory Approval Certificate 20/7/2016 Bureau Veritas Group
EREIEZS B R i e R
10 Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation Scheme 28/7/2016 Marks & Spencer Group
S BAERRRETE S aERE!
11 Level Il + Laboratory Accreditation Certificate 4/8/2016 adidas® Group & Intertek
I+ RERERAFE Group
Pz EE R RAEEE
12 Organic Content Standard (OCS-NL) 12/8/2016 Control Union Certifications
B =R %E (OCS-NL)*
13 Global Organic Textiles Standards (GOTS) 19/8/2016 Control Union Certifications

2IE R BT E (GOTS)

* English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
RXEHERENPXEWLEX - HAKE  HIARXEERE-
# Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English name shall prevail.

FXERBERBETRAXEEZEN - WERE BUAXAERE-
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
(“Fountain Set” or the “Company”, and the “Board” respectively), | am
pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the financial year ended 31 December 2016,
and to provide you with an overview of the Group's strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, stalling global trade, weak investment and heightened policy
uncertainty have depressed the economic activities worldwide. Global growth
is estimated to have fallen to 2.3% in 2016 — the weakest performance
since the global financial crisis and 0.1 percentage point below June 2016
according to the World Bank’s January 2017 Global Economic Prospects.
2016 proved to be more challenging than expected for the Textile and
Apparel (“T&A") sector as the world economy failed to break the 3% GDP
growth rate. T&A sales output decreased by 1.5%. This decline was mostly
attributable to the protracted lower-than bearable demand that resulted in
a deflationist spiral. At best, T&A producer prices remained stable, as in
China, but they decreased in most cases. US Producer Price Index was
down 1.2% on average in 2016 while India’s shed 1.8%. The continuous
depreciation of most emerging countries’ currencies is causing international
capital to flow from emerging markets back to the United States, elevating
financial risks in some regions.

We continued investing in our business with the goal of building a long-term
sustainable business that will weather any change in the global operating
environment. During 2016, the oil prices and other commodities prices
have increased, which put certain level of stress in our production costs.
According to the National Cotton Council of America, the cost of cotton has
indeed increased by 15.6% during 2016. The price of cotton was at the
lowest in March 2016 and at the highest in July 2016. During this period,
cotton prices rose by about 23.8%. According to the 2016 China Cotton
Index annual report published by the China Cotton Association, the price of
yarns was at the lowest in April 2016 and at the highest in July 2016. During
this period, yarn prices rose by about 21.1%. According to the China coal
industry website, the monitoring data shown on 16 December 2016 based
on the China coal price index (national comprehensive) was 160.9, up 45.2
points from the early of the year, up 45.0 points year-on-year. Under the
above challenges, the Group has still managed to deliver improved financial
results for the fiscal year 2016. Thanks to our very dedicated management
and operational team who have worked very hard to streamline our operation
through lean manufacturing, further improved efficiency and cost saving
have been achieved during 2016. We shall continue our efforts to sharpen
our competitiveness to meet the challenges ahead.

EEHEE(EE)FREE 20165 FH

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREE

BERR:

AABREZRBHEE (EB)BRAR([EHE
FRIXEARRDEZEG ([EFF])MARZ
ARAIREWBAR ([REE])EZE2016512A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”")
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To honor its name and go-green, we will only upload the 2016 ESG report
on the respective websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
and our Company, which details Fountain Set's progress in multiple ESG
areas, showing where we exceeded expectations and where we need further
improvement. We truly understand that protecting our environment by
only ourselves will not get us fast enough. We have embraced sustainable
innovation as a powerful engine for growth not only for our own business,
but across upstream and downstream partners in our industry. In 2016, we
have set up a “Sustainability Development and Enhancement Committee”
(the “Committee”) which consists of different subsidiaries and cross-
functional departments. The Committee not only helps to drive the
vision across the Group but also implements our sustainability objectives
and goals. The Committee challenges our business to understand our
sustainability impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and

overcomes obstacles in meeting them.

In 2016, we have also started a revolutionary new business — centralized
heat supply project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a truly
pioneer evolvement in the industry. The Shatian Town Industrial Park (the
“Park”) (for electroplating, fabric printing and dyeing industry) is one of
the seven largest environmental industrial parks in Dongguan, China. It
integrates and assembles the industry’s enterprises within the Park and in
other areas in Shatian Town, which are required to be relocated. The Project
is one of the ancillary projects of the industrial park development, which
is also a key project of the implementation plan of centralized heat supply
in Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster Areas. The Project
will contribute to cleaner air for the community and neighborhood by the
reduction of NOx, SO2 as well as smoke and dust emission by the remaining

28 coal-fired heaters within the district.

Since the Project is still under construction and preparation, the Group will

announce more detail information when time is appropriate.
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The Group’s production facilities have made and The Group will continue to
make investments in adopting advanced technologies and install additional
equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides periodic
training to the staff regarding environmental protection and pollution
controls. The Group also invites qualified advisors to visit its factories from
time to time to evaluate whether the environmental protection measures are

up to standard and to give recommendations for further improvement.

Following an update of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee of the
Board in February 2016 to oversee the Group’s overall risk management
and internal control systems, the Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed the risk management and internal control systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have
effective systems, as well as to consider major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and proceed research according to the management’s

response to these findings.

LOOKING FORWARD

In the year ahead, the global economy is likely to face a number of
challenges, including worries over possible trade barriers among nations,
possible further the United States (the “U.S.”) interest rate hikes, recovery of
oil prices and volatilities in the financial markets. Having said that, according
to World Bank, the growth in emerging markets and developing economies is
expected to rise to 2.7% in 2017.

We expect that 2017 is going to be another challenging year with the growth
of the Chinese economy expected to continue to slow down. However,
we see this as an opportunity as the growth becomes more driven by
domestic consumption than by export. Our ability to improve control from
raw materials sourcing to finished textiles products, reduce overall cost and
speed up time-to-market will continue to make us the partner of choice

going forward.
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We believe that all of our staff will work hard to follow the Board’s direction
and objectives, stick together with one heart and to fully implement the
working plans set by the Board, and to further map out our long term
development strategy. With our spirit of “diligence, frugality, sincerity and
integrity” and our general direction “to stabilize operation and to enhance
development”, we shall keep on enhancing our efficiency and exploring the
market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group to a new level. We look
forward to completing our annual operating tasks and targets with excellent

performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| am grateful for the good guidance and counsel from my fellow
Board members. We appreciate very much the ongoing support of our
shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other partners. My great
gratitude is also extended to the staff of the Group as they work tirelessly
to ensure that the Group remains one of the top circular knitted fabric

suppliers in the world.

ZHAO Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

23 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

During the year under review, the Euro zone's recovery was moderate
while developing economies,

(the “PRC") or

including the People’s Republic of China
(“China”), have recorded slower growth. Nevertheless,
the global economy, particularly in the second half year, continued to be
volatile and unstable. The recovery of the United State (the “U.S.”), being
the largest end-market of our business, gradually became recognized and
provided some positive sentiments to the global economy. The operating
environment of the textile and garment industry in China remained
unimproved; especially we experienced weak domestic and overseas market
demand. The further slow down of Mainland China’s macroeconomic growth
intensified competition.

In addition, further depreciation on Renminbi

currency led to downward declines in the domestic demand and economy.

Since the U.S. has withdrawn participation in the Trans-Pacific Partnership
(“TPP”) in December 2016 upon the change of Presidency, several TPP
signatories, including Malaysia and Vietnam, have been signaling that
the agreement is essentially dead without the U.S. Although the Group
was frequently asked to invest or co-invest in one of the TPP countries by
our customers and peers in previous years, our fabric dyeing production
capacity has still remained in China due to several reasons, including the
major one being the instability of the TPP. The loss of expected export
tariff benefit from TPP countries to the U.S. as the withdrawal of the U.S.

will diminish the original drive of setting up production sites in those TPP

countries.

Despite the uncertain global economy, overall difficult retail market and
decline in fabric demand, Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited continued to
uphold its prudent and pragmatic approach to deal with the ever-changing
market conditions and prepare for the challenges. The Group successfully
achieved a significant growth in net profit despite the reduction of sales by
4.9% during the year under review, mainly attributable to its focus on lean
management, technology automation, machinery upgrade, cost reduction

and control initiatives to boost overall operating profitability.
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The Group’s revenue decreased by 4.9% to HK$6,328.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$6,653.1 million) due to the change
of product mix and the fact that the Group was unable to pass on all the
increased costs to customers owing to fierce competition and the average

selling price of the fabric reduced.

Thanks to the tight management on the raw material procurement and
better control in the production costs, gross profit margin, however, slightly
increased to 12.2% (12.1% in 2015) despite the decrease in revenue.
As our revenue was slightly lower than that of previous year, the Group’s
gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 also slightly decreased
correspondingly by 4.0% to HK$775.1 million (2015: HK$807.6 million).

During the year under review, most of the production cost of fabric increased
dramatically. Cotton price and yarn price showed an upward trend over
2016. According to the National Cotton Council of America, the cost of
cotton has indeed increased by 15.6% during 2016. The price of cotton was
at the lowest in March 2016 and at the highest in July 2016. During this
period, cotton prices rose by about 23.8%. According to the 2016 China
Cotton Index annual report published by the China Cotton Association, the
price of yarns was at the lowest in April 2016 and at the highest in July
2016. During this period, yarn prices rose by about 21.1%. In addition, coal
price in China increased by about 60% year-on-year, coupled with the ever-
increasing trend of labour cost in China. In normal situation, the gross profit
margin would have deteriorated. Nevertheless, the Group was in turn able
to successfully control the gross profit margin flat when compared to that of

last year.

Some of the adverse factors for the Group’s operating environment will
continue, including the increase in cotton price, rise of labour cost in
China and the significant increase in price of coal. In order to secure the
sustainable development of the Group, our core competitiveness in terms
of advanced production technology, and our innovative capability of doing

business are the key.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

With the help of its continuous adoption of advanced technology and
proactive cost-saving efforts, the Group managed to offset some rising
pressure of operation costs. During the year under review, distribution and
selling expenses decreased to HK$163.8 million (2015: HK$191.7 million).
Administrative expenses decreased to HK$424.3 million (2015: HK$469.4
million). The Group increased net profit margin for the year attributable to
owners of the Company to 2.0%, higher than that of 1.5% in previous year.
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased to HK$127.9
million (2015: HK$99.9 million). As a result, basic earnings per share was
HK10.6 cents, up from HK8.3 cents in 2015.

During the year under review, the Group further improved the production
efficiency through continuously reinforcing its lean production management
and applying automated equipment, thereby promoting sustained business
growth of the Group. In addition, the Group has also begun the construction
of its special fabric production project. In order to cope with the pressure
of rising labour costs, the Group also strived to improve its employees’
production efficiency by standardizing equipment, workflow and operation,
which laid a good foundation to better improve the level of production
automation in the future. During the year under review, the Group further
reduced orders from some of its small and medium-sized customers, and
its sales grew in a more balanced manner as evidenced by the fact that
the sales of each of its core customers, major products and main markets

delivered a growth.

Total Production Management

Since its launch in 2015, Total Production Management (TPM) operated
smoothly in all our fabric production facilities with an aim to enhance
production efficiency. By reducing operational costs through an increase
in the maintenance awareness on the production equipment among all
production staff and the encouragement to the staff to initiate operational
improvement, staff morale and positive momentums have been advocated in
all production facilities and meaningful cost-saving efforts were seen during
the year under review. At the same time, the Group has continued to provide
a series of production training to all production staff in the fabric mills, to
refresh and reinforce staff with updated knowledge on production operation,
technical craftsmanship as well as management skills. Enormous positive

feedbacks have been received from the staff.
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Production Facilities Upgrade

During the year under review, the Group has replaced and upgraded
numerous relatively less updated and less efficient production facilities
in our fabric mills, including fabric dyeing machines, fabric finishing
machines and fabric printing machines with new and latest models which
provide better production efficiency, less wastage and higher energy saving.
The tender committee of the Group have been standardizing the tender
management policy and procedure for purchasing new production machines
to ensure that the process provides the best interest to the Company as well

as our suppliers.

Customers

The Group is a knitted fabric manufacturer with products mainly marketed
in the U.S., Europe and China, which are supplied to end-buyer customers
primarily consisting of renowned international brands and retailers. During
the year under review, several sizable middle-end apparel retail brands or
department stores in the U.S. have experienced downsizing in terms of the
number of shops. Last year, the Group had successfully started collaboration
with several new clients, including several popular and quality Japanese
brands, a few well-known Chinese causal wear brands as well as some
notable North American retail brands which provide high potential going

forward.

Production Capacity and Operational Measurement

The Group's production capacity maintained at about 25 million pounds
of fabric dyeing per month, which was diversified among four fabric mills
in both China and Sri Lanka. The upgrade of equipment has leveraged
the advantages of the integrated production and supply chain of knitting,
dyeing and printing as well as the feature of rapid response, in addition
to higher efficiency and lower energy consumption. In respect of lowering
controllable costs, the Group has implemented the following measures:
deregistrating inactive or non-profitable companies and business to reduce
administrative costs, integrating the garment business to reduce operating
costs, focusing on high value-added orders to ensure sufficient orders and
greater competitiveness, and further implementing the methods of energy
saving and emission reduction to comply with the government requirement
on environmental protection and reduce the overall energy consumption
of the production mills. These measures have achieved notable results,
enabling the Group to allocate funds to other appropriate use. Last but not
least, the Group has optimized the work allocation of employees, which
helped to improve the management structure and operation procedure. By
clearly identifying the work division of each department, the execution ability

of the overall management has been significantly enhanced.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Capital Investment

The Group is committed to continuous investment in infrastructure,
machinery and information systems according to the operation needs and
future development plan. With nine mills and factories within the Group,
regular infrastructure maintenance and machinery upgrade are necessary to
ensure continuous improvement in operations. The Group plans to continue
fine-tuning the enterprise resource planning system SAP during 2017. It
is expected that the overall operational efficiency and productivity will be

improved as a result of the full implementation of new system.

Dividend

In view of the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has recommended to pay a final dividend of HK5.3 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK4.0 cents). The total
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 would be HK5.3 cents
per share (payout ratio: 50.0%) as compared with HK4.0 cents per share
(payout ratio: 48.2%) for the year ended 31 December 2015. Subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 22 June
2017 (Thursday), it is expected that the payment of final dividend will be
made on or before 21 July 2017 (Friday).

Event after the Reporting Date

Save as disclosed in note 42 of the consolidated financial statements of the
annual report, the Group did not have any significant events since the end of
the reporting date (i.e. 31 December 2016) and up to the date of the annual

report.
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BEHBERES R
FINANCIAL REVIEW 5t %5 [=] 8
The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended  AN&EEEHZ=2016F12A31B IEFE 2 EEBKE N
31 December 2016 are set out below: MGHEZRZ25 T
Statement of Profit or Loss Items BERER
(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (BRFFRIGERRSNET B 258
otherwise stated) HUAFHETIR)
Revenue EER 6,328,714 6,653,051
Gross profit E A 775,124 807,645
EBITDA BRI & R AT AE 350,009 350,192
Profit for the year EFEERF 149,992 128,074
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 72 &l A A FE {5 & A 127,903 99,860
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FREARZREF (L) 10.6 83
Key Financial Ratios FEMKEE
Profitability ratios B FIGEL tEFE
Gross profit margin (%) EFZE(%) 12.2% 12.1%
EBITDA margin (%) BT E N 55 A0 FE % (%) 5.5% 5.3%
Expenses as a % of revenue B &R FE
Distribution and selling expenses HiEREEEM 2.6% 2.9%
Administrative expenses THER 6.7% 7.1%
Finance costs & B AR 0.3% 0.4%
Asset efficiency BENE
Inventory turnover period (days) FERAHEH (/) 92 88
Trade and bills receivables turnover period EEYSE S e N
(days) (8) 70 72
Trade and bills payables turnover period EENE S AN
(days) (8) 50 53
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THERM WS

At At
31 December 2016 31 December 2015
7A2016%F12H31H MR2015F12A31H

Asset ratios BE~LZE
Current ratio VEII RS 2.2 2.1
Net debt/EBITDA ratio SFERS BRI E K AT
FE = (0.6) (0.6)
Revenue XX

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to

approximately HK$6,328,714,000 (2015: HK$6,653,051,000).

Revenue by business segments

FY2016

2016815

In current year, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately HK$5,461,209,000
(2015: HK$5,626,076,000), accounted for 86.3% (2015: 84.6%) of the
Group's total revenue. Revenue from production and sales of garments was
approximately HK$867,505,000 (2015: HK$1,026,975,000), accounted for
13.7% (2015: 15.4%) of the Group's total revenue.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$5,553,590,000 (2015: HK$5,845,406,000)
and overall gross profit margin was 12.2% (2015: 12.1%).

SEBE2016F12A3IA I FEMNEXHOR
6,328,714,0007% 7T (2015% : 6,653,051,000/%

o)

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics
and Yarns

SUENHE T RY

Production and Sales of Garments

SUE R HE KK

RAFE SEROEB-HEREECT R
%K) & E T4 R5,461,209,0007% 7T (20154 ¢
5,626,076,000/8 7T ) * (hE B2 X R (EH)86.3%
(20154 :84.6% ) - BiE R IHE K KA & X 5
#) £867,505,0007% 7T (20154 : 1,026,975,000
BIT) B EEE EEMEENI3.7% (20155
15.4%) °

HE A K E A

EEHE2016F12A31 B ILFE 2 BEHERA
#) /5,553,590,0007 7T (20154 : 5,845,406,000
BID) BEREERERE12.2% (2015F 1 12.1% ) °
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During the year under review, the Group’s revenue decreased by 4.9%,
mainly caused by the change of product mix and the decline in average

selling price of fabric.

The Group adopted a series of measures to improve the operation efficiency
and to reduce production costs. In addition, the depreciation of Renminbi
(“RMB”) during the year under review also led to result in a decrease
in production cost, since most of the production plants of the Group are
located in the PRC. Therefore, the effect of the change of product mix and
the decrease in the selling prices of certain fabric was offset thus the gross

profit margin percentage remained the same as last year.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$163,756,000 (2015:
HK$191,745,000), accounted for 2.6% (2015: 2.9%) of the Group's total

revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$424,275,000 (2015:
HK$469,362,000), accounted for 6.7% (2015: 7.1%) of the Group's total

revenue.

The percentage of the distribution and selling expenses and the
administrative expenses to the Group's total revenue slightly decreased
when compared with last year, were attributable to the effective internal cost

control and the effect of currency exchange.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
(EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$350,009,000 (2015: HK$350,192,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 5.5% (2015: 5.3%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$19,506,000 (2015: HK$26,166,000),
0.3% (2015: 0.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

representing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$256,485,000 (2015: HK$118,322,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment, other intangible assets and prepaid lease payments. The
Group expects the capital expenditure for the next financial year will be

approximately HK$200,000,000.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2016, income tax expense of the Group

amounted to approximately HK$18,076,000 (2015: HK$24,133,000).

Profit for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2016, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$127,903,000 (2015: HK$99,860,000) and
the corresponding profit margin was 2.0% (2015: 1.5%).

Inventory

The Group’s inventory amounted to approximately HK$1,401,911,000
(2015: HK$1,410,330,000) as at 31 December 2016. The inventory
turnover period was 92 days, an increase of 4 days compared with 88 days

in 2015.

Trade and Bills Receivables

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted
to approximately HK$1,209,330,000 (2015: HK$1,313,533,000). Trade
and bills receivables turnover period was 70 days, a decrease of 2 days

compared with 72 days in 2015.

Trade and Bills Payables

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted to
approximately HK$752,140,000 (2015: HK$851,477,000). Trade and bills
payables turnover period was 50 days, a decrease of 3 days compared with

53 days in 2015.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,453,645,000 (2015: HK$3,394,756,000). The key figures of financial

position were as follows:

B REENMTHER
HR2016F12A31 H « S B & E/FEAA3,453,645,000
77T (20154F : 3,394,756,000/87T) ° ISR =2

Non-current assets EREBEE
Current assets MBEE
Total assets BEEBE
Current liabilities mBEE
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Total liabilities BEBE
Net assets BEEFE

BRI
At At

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
7A2016%F12H31H 2015 12A31H
HK$’000 Tt HK$'000 F& T
1,738,318 1,707,950
3,633,297 3,722,604
5,371,615 5,430,554
1,671,279 1,809,609
246,691 226,189
1,917,970 2,035,798
3,453,645 3,394,756

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank

borrowings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

At 31 December 2016, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios

(according to the banks’ definitions) were as follows:

THEREMWES W

M20165F12A318 ' T 2P BELHEIR &=
(REBRITHER)WAT

Consolidated tangible net worth REFENREE
Consolidated total bank debt to RAERIRITTAEY
consolidated tangible net worth RAEFEREELD
Consolidated EBITDA to RE BT E MR
consolidated interest expense FIE LA FI B X Wl
Consolidated current assets to A mEBEEY
consolidated current liabilities A mEE &L A
Consolidated capital expenditure HRAEBARAX

At At

31 December 2016 31 December 2015
M2016%F12H31H MK2015F12A31H
HK$3,067,813,000 HK$3,019,313,000
0.2 0.2

17.9 13.4

2.2 2.1
HK$256,485,000 HK$118,322,000

As at 31 December 2016, the annual capital expenditure of the Group
exceeded the limit of general undertakings to a bank. The Group obtained a
waiver letter from a relevant bank not to demand for immediate repayment

of the bank borrowings.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had complied with all

covenant ratios and undertakings.

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to

manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sales and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"”), U.S. dollars (“USD”) and
RMB. Since the Group mainly carries out production in China, we are
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB exposure. As a result
of persistent fluctuations in the RMB exchange rate, the Group has been
closely monitoring the exchange rate fluctuation for USD and RMB and will
continue to review the foreign currency hedging strategy as appropriate in

order to mitigate the foreign currency risk in a cautious manner.

R2016F12A31H » REBFE L AR B %
—RITH—RAKRE AEBEHR B AR
EBREEZRKRABERRITERENK.

REE2015F12A31B ILFER > KEBZEST
FTA R4 b R T s

Rk & 1
SESKRBEES RBENE R E B & MNE
B & L o

SEZHEMRHMRBUABT ETRARER
T o M EENEEEMMRTE - BOF R AREH
EEZINERR - AR ARBEXZERD £H
—HENEREITRARBEXNEE) KRR
REMN TR B ERIMNE S P ERABEER

B o
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In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
USD, interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. Since the
market expected that the interest rates in the U.S. might rise in the coming
year, the Group will continue to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the
market and will arrange appropriate financial instruments to minimise the

interest rate risk.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately 9,900 (2015:
12,100) full time employees. The Group will continue to implement
streamlined production so as to further minimize our labour cost. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and the salary trends in various regions, which are reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also distribute a
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to

the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees, and
also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing education
so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to production, selling

and management.

OUTLOOK

The Group is strongly committed to increasing sales with existing quality
customers as well as growing new customers. On the other hand, the Group
is also dedicated in significantly reducing the overall costs to maintain its
competitiveness in the already challenging market. A series of operational
equipment upgrades in all our fabric mills will continue to contribute greatly
to the benefits of the Group in the long run. Despite the uncertainties ahead,
the Group will maintain a prudent and pragmatic approach. The Board and
the management believe that the Group’s marketing and sales strategy and
the above operational measures can play a positive role in the long-term
business development and continuous efficiency improvement, so that the
Group can enjoy higher profitability, a stable financial position and a solid

foundation for better performance.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), except for the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has consistently adopted
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as

guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2016, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised eight members,
namely three executive Directors (the “EDs”), two non-executive Directors
(the “NEDs”) and three independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”).
The NEDs and INEDs represented about 63% of the Board members
thereat. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Board

comprises the following members:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHEN Minghong

Mr. LAN Jiang (appointed on 9 May 2016)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman) (resigned on 19 May 2016)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi (retired on 24 June 2016)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM (appointed on 9 May 2016)

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP (retired on 24 June 2016)
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On 9 May 2016, Mr. LAN Jiang was appointed as a new ED and Mr. William
LAM was appointed as a new INED. On 19 May 2016, Mr. HA Kam On,
Victor resigned as an ED. On 24 June 2016, Mr. GONG Zhengyi retired as
an ED and Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SB8S, JP retired as an INED. The
number of INEDs continuously represents one-third of the Board as required
by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all the current Directors are
set out on pages 56 to 60 of this annual report. The relationships among the
Board members (including financial, business, family or other material or

relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed there.

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the
Articles provides that at each annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third or any
other number subject to such manner of rotation as may be required by the
statutes, the Listing Rules or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed
from time to time by the applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from
office. Article 93 of the Articles also provides that any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy (who shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company) or as an addition to the Board (who shall hold
office until the next following AGM shall then be eligible for re-election, but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who are to retire

by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the business operations of the
Group in the interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial and

management performance of the Group.
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The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business to the executive management team, and focused its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been
formulated and will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that
shall be reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management. The
Board has given clear directions to the management that certain matters
must be referred to the Board for consideration and approval. The Board
is the ultimate decision making body of the Company except for matters
requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles,

the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each
meeting in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were

made by majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2016 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2015
and any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place
to allow the Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board

meetings.
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All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board
on governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so
in the furtherance of his/her respective duties, might take independent
professional advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”))
at the Company’s expense. The availability of professional advice extended
to three Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. Minutes of the Board
meetings were taken by the Company Secretary and, together with any
supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and

record respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his/her
interest and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which
he/she or any of his/her associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
a material interest and that he/she would not be counted in the quorum
present at the Board meeting. Such matters were considered at a Board
meeting attended by the INEDs who had no material interest in the

transaction or proposal.
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Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee

and a general meeting during the Year are set out in the following table:

BEHEE(EE)FRAT 2016FFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

EENESEER EFZEgEAN
BRAEZHFEIBIR

REER EEREEREHR BREEGGH
FHEEEER REZATEARBEASN
i S SIBN T -

Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year
AEEREBCHRERY BEHECEHR

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpg ENZEE FHMZEE REEZEE RRBFAE®
EDs HITEE
Mr. ZHAO Yao HBTAE 4/4 - - 33 171
Mr. CHEN Minghong RSk E 4/4 = = = 1/
Mr. LAN Jiang ETkAE
(appointed on 9 May 2016) (F2016F5A9HEZT) 33 - 11 - 1/
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor ERTEE
(resigned on 19 May 2016) (PA2016F5A19H BHE) 11 = = = =
Mr. GONG Zhengyi BEELE
(resigned as a member of (20165 A9H B T
the Remuneration Committee on HMZEEMER
9 May 2016 and retired as R2016F6A24R
an ED on 24 June 2016) REHTES) i = 33 = 11
NEDs HHTEF
Dr. YEN Gordon BEHEL 44 = = = 1/
Mr. ZHANG Chong RELE 4/4 4/4 - - 171
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung HBIRELAE 44 44 4/4 = 1/
Mr. YING Wei EfR % 4E 3/4 - 444 33 11
Mr. William LAM MR SE &
(appointed on 9 May 2016) (M2016F5R9REZT) 3/3 2/2 = 11 11
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, $8s, /P KB AE #2725 P41
(retired on 24 June 2016) (1A2016F6A24 B R {E) 171 2/2 - 33 171
Date of the meetings 2HAH 18/3/2016 11/1/2016 15/2/2016 18/3/2016 24/6/2016
24/6/2016 15/3/2016 15/3/2016 20/4/2016
18/8/2016 8/7/2016 20/4/2016 19/5/2016
18/11/2016 12/8/2016 19/5/2016
Training of Directors Sk

FBEEFHERIEHEHAECEEF  BRBERE
T BARNES ZHEBEN - RAIRRO - B
regulations applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and B & TR ANEB £ 2 BRFIESI ER MR T
EEREZERARAERE TEREHARE

RHUZENAEFR -

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the

duties and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and

the business of the Group and induction materials will also be provided to

newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

35



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness

of good corporate governance practices.

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year or
within the period during the Year he held directorship of the Company (the
“Period”) (as the case might be), each of the Directors named below has
participated in continuous professional development by attending seminars/
in-house briefing/reading materials on the following topics to develop and
refresh his knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Notes)

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (a), (b) and (c)
Mr. CHEN Minghong (a), (b) and (c)
Mr. LAN Jiang (a), (b) and (c)

(appointed on 9 May 2016)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

(resigned on 19 May 2016)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi

(retired on 24 June 2016)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs
Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei
Mr. William LAM
(appointed on 9 May 2016)

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

(retired on 24 June 2016)

(a), (b) and (c)

(@), (b) and (c)

(a), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)

(a), (b) and (c)
(@), (b) and (c)
(a), (b) and (c)

(@), (b) and (c)

Notes:

(a) corporate governance

(b) regulatory requirements or risk management
(c) finance or business operation/management
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Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of

potential legal action against the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE
“CEO”)

With effect from 23 January 2015, Mr. ZHAO Yao, the Chairman and an
ED, has taken up the position of CEO of the Company, details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2015. This
deviates from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that
the responsibilities of the chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. However,
having considered the current status of the Group, vesting the roles of
both Chairman and CEO in the same person enables the Group to plan its
overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the budgeted target. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority under this arrangement
is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises experienced,
professional and high caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof

being INEDs.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each
of the NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation
and re-election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with

the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual
written confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of

the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. The Company had made specific enquiries of all Directors and
all of them have confirmed their compliance with the required standards set
out in the Model Code throughout the Year or within the Period (as the case

might be).

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference
have been reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by
reference to the CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of
each of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of each of these committees was reported to the

Board regularly.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were
revised and adopted on 26 February 2016 to include the responsibilities
on reviewing the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to consider the
appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on the changes in
accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit
adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to
review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal

control systems.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises 1
NED, namely Mr. ZHANG Chong, and 2 INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung
and Mr. William LAM (appointed on 9 May 2016). The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung. Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP ceased
to act as a member of the Audit Committee upon his retirement as an INED

on 24 June 2016.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of
the attendance are shown in the table on page 35 of this annual report. A
summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the appointment and re-
appointment of independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and

the terms of engagement of the independent auditor;

o reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, and discussed with the independent auditor
before the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and

the reporting obligations;

o reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as

well as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

o reviewed the financial control, internal control and risk management

systems;

o discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to achieve effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting

function;
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° ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced
and had appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and

monitored its effectiveness;

° reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

° reviewed the independent auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditor to management regarding the accounting
records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s

response.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Group’s independent auditor,
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$3,063,000 and HK$870,000 respectively. The non-audit

services mainly consisted of review, consultancy and taxation services.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
independent auditor’s statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out

on pages 76 to 81 of this annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2017 AGM for the approval
of the Shareholders.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the Executive Committee at least annually; 2) to
identify and recommend suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s)
or to fill Board vacancies as they arise and to assess candidates as new
member(s) of the Executive Committee or to fill the vacancies of the Board
committees as they arise, for the approval of the Board; 3) to assess the
independence of the INEDs; and 4) to review the policy of diversity of the

Board (the “Policy”).

The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background
and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars of

the Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. 1o enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable

and balanced development of the Company.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected

candidate(s) will bring to the Board.
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Monitoring and Review

The Nomination Committee has been monitoring and reviewing the Policy

and will recommend any revisions thereof (if appropriate) to the Board.

The Nomination Committee, as at the date of this annual report, comprises
an ED, Mr. ZHAO Yao, and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr.
William LAM (appointed on 9 May 2016) and is chaired by Mr. ZHAO Yao.
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP ceased to act as a member of the

Nomination Committee upon his retirement as an INED on 24 June 2016.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors; 2) to review and
approve the Company’'s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives for the Board’s
approval. The Company’s remuneration policy is to provide a competitive
level of remuneration in accordance with current market conditions to attract

and motivate the Directors and staff for their contribution.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
an ED, Mr. LAN Jiang (appointed on 9 May 2016), and two INEDs, namely
Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr. YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei. Mr.
GONG Zhengyi resigned as a member of the Remuneration Committee on 9
May 2016. The Remuneration Committee held 4 meetings during the Year
and details of attendance are shown in the table on page 35 of this annual
report. A summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the

Year is set out as follows:

o made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or

appointment and assessed their performance;
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o reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate

goals and objectives; and

o ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates (as defined

in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her remuneration.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the Year and details
of the attendance are shown in the table on page 35 of this annual report. A
summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out

as follows:

o made recommendations to the Board and determined the Policy on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships, the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and assessed the independence of the
INEDs;

o reviewed the Policy; and

° reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with
a diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the

business of the Group.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will first consider necessary changes in respect of the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by
considering their professional knowledge and industry experience,
personal ethics, integrity and personal skills and time commitments,
and make recommendations to the Board for decision. The nomination
criteria also include the nominee’s skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the Group’s business and, for INEDs, the nominee’s

independence.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal

control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”). The risk

management measures and internal control systems employed by the Group

are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve

the business objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material and/or financial misstatement or

loss. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee (“AC”) the following

duties:

to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and

internal control systems;

to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and to review and monitor its

effectiveness; and

to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and the management’s response to these findings.

The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) and

the Corporate Operation Management Department (“COMD”) to manage the

internal control and risk management issues of the Group respectively. The
COMD reports to both the AC and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ"), while
the IAD reports only to the AC.
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The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
other risk issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time
to time. The Board reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied

with the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises four staff members. It is governed by an internal audit
charter and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit
function. The IAD has prepared 18 internal audit reports during the year
ended 31 December 2016. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been
provided with adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified staff
with sufficient experience and training programs to perform its internal audit

function.

The missions of the IAD are:

- to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and

operation processes; and

- to assist the organization in achieving the best practice, thus becoming

the best managed company.

The IAD is authorized to have unrestricted access to records, personnel, and
physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their relevance
depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as the audit
environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on the handling
of sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD is authorized
to directly and regularly communicate with the senior management and
all executives in individual organization being audited to discuss its
major findings. All personnel within the Group are required to assert full
cooperation any time and in any place with the IAD necessary to allow it to

discharge its responsibilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Upon reviewing the risk management practice and internal control measures
employed during 2016, the Board has identified that there is a need to
implement a risk management framework for the Group in response to
the versatile business environment the Group faces and recommended to
implement the comprehensive risk management framework (“Framework”)
for the Group. The Framework is to execute the basic risk management
measures in various business sectors such as production, operation and
management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open and proactive
risk management culture, and (ii) safeguard the strategic development and

current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Comprehensive Risk Management Framework
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The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework
(“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of
the Group is made up of the Board, AC, CEO, senior management, COMD,

IAD and various subsidiaries of the Company.
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The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up
of senior management and heads of various functional and operational
departments of the Group, who are the key players for minimizing potential
risks in advance. The second layer consists of the AC, CEO and COMD,
which is mainly responsible for the organization, co-ordination and planning
of the corporate risk management works and monitors the progress of
the risk management works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk
management crisis. The last layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to review
and audit the existing operation flow such as information system, business
flow and financial disclosure. The last layer is often the key to mitigate risk

factors in the aftermath of a risk management crisis.
The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the

three layers of the Framework:
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In 2017, COMD will continue to focus on the following risk management

issues:

1. to continue to refine the details of the Framework;

2. to consolidate the volume-based analysis and the nature-based

analysis; and

3. to continue to identify and categorize the potential risks faced by the

Group.

During 2016, the IAD and the COMD had reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings to the
AC. The Board and the AC are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy

of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Board and the AC noted that the Company has breached Rule
14A.54(1) of the Listing Rules, because of the exceeding of the 2016 annual
cap of certain continuing connected transactions, namely, the master sales
agreement dated 18 November 2015 (“2018 AH Master Sales Agreement”)
entered into between the Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand
Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”), a director and a substantial shareholder
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The 2018 AH Master
Sales Agreement relates to the sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment
parts by members of the Group to members of the companies which
Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and relatives individually or together
exercise or control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at
general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the board of
directors (the “AH Group” and “AH Sales Transactions”, respectively).

It was noted that the total transaction amount under the 2018 AH Master
Sales Agreement with Mr. Hirdaramani for the year ended 31 December
2016 was approximately HK$160,260,000 (“2016 AH Transaction
Amount”). It was noted that the 2016 AH Transaction Amount received
by the Company exceeded the 2016 annual cap of HK$150,000,000
(“2016 AH Annual Cap”) as stated in the circular of the Company dated
11 December 2015, by approximately HK$10,260,000, or approximately
6.84% of the 2016 AH Annual Cap.
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The Board and the AC noted the reasons for exceeding the 2016 AH Annual ZEE & LKEZZE E & 5K
Cap were: BIIEEH /A

FBH2016F AHFE EFR

a steady increase of cotton prices in 2016 which exceeded the Group's
expectations. According to the National Cotton Council of America,
the cost of cotton has increased by 15.6% during 2016. The price
of cotton was at the lowest in March 2016 and at the highest in July
2016. During this period, cotton prices rose about 23.8%. According
to the 2016 China Cotton Index annual report published by the China
Cotton Association, the price of yarns was at the lowest in April 2016
and at the highest in July 2016. During this period, yarn prices rose
about 21.1%. As cotton is used for the production of knitted fabrics,
yarns, fibers and garment parts, the costs and prices of these products

under the AH Sales Transactions also increased accordingly; and

the AH Sales Transactions and 2016 AH Transaction Amount were

higher than expected.

The Board and the AC also noted that the Company has taken the

following remedial measures:

A. The Company immediately notified the Stock Exchange, made the
relevant announcement timely and authorized the joint company
secretary of the Company to publish the relevant announcements
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company as required.

B. The Company has provided a continuing connected transactions
training on 25 January 2017 to the Directors, on the relevant
continuing connected transactions rules and regulations
under the Listing Rules so as to strengthen their awareness on

compliance requirements.
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The Company will further provide a continuing connected
transactions training to the senior management, accounting
personnel and other relevant personnel of the sales department
responsible for the continuing connected transactions of the
Company, to enhance supervision of the continuing connected
transactions. It will periodically conduct the aforesaid training to
ensure that all the above parties will maintain their awareness
on compliance requirements concerning continuing connected

transactions.

The Company currently has in place a system for monitoring
the continuing connected transactions of the Company, of
which transaction data is provided by each of the Company’s
subsidiaries monthly and reviewed by the Group's finance
department. The IAD will conduct sample checking based
on random selection of at least five transactions entered into
between the Group and the connected persons on a monthly
basis to ensure the accuracy of transaction data. The IAD will
review the relevant invoice/purchase order and make enquiries
with the concerned sales staff and customers to verify the
information contained in such invoice/purchase order. The
corporate governance department of the Company is responsible
for monitoring these figures on a monthly basis and immediately
alert the INEDs, the IAD and the joint company secretaries
of a potential breach of the prescribed annual cap once the
continuing connected transaction amount reaches 80% of the
prescribed annual cap. The Company will now further lower this
threshold and alert the INEDs when the continuing connected
transaction amount reaches 65% of the relevant annual cap so as

to avoid future occurrence of similar events.

The Company will continue to closely review the continuing
connected transactions on a regular basis and take prompt
actions to make necessary disclosure and obtain independent
shareholders’ approval in the event that any adjustment to an
annual cap becomes foreseeable as required under the Listing

Rules.

As such, the Board and the AC are satisfied with the effectiveness of the

Company’s procedure for the Listing Rules compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information
(“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is Inside Information and/or whether the Company
has to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the
Group must report to the Board and/or CEO any information they have
which they believe to be Inside Information and will trigger the Company
to discharge its disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up

accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing Inside Information
to the public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any
department and/or employee of the Group in order to help determining
whether the alleged information is Inside Information and/or whether

disclosure is required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (ii) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and management;
and (c) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
Corporate Governance Report. The Board has, amongst other matters,
reviewed this Corporate Governance Report, ensuring compliance with the

Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s amendments to risk management and
internal control under the CG Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January 2016, the Board should
oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis and has delegated such responsibilities to the Audit
Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised and
adopted on 26 February 2016 to include the additional responsibilities on

reviewing the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han, Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”) joined the Group in
October 2003 and is currently a Joint Company Secretary and the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department) of the Company. She
has over 16 years of extensive working experience specializing in investor
relations, credit management, company secretarial matters, corporate affairs
and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor’s degree of
Commerce from Mount Allison University, Canada and an Executive Master’s
degree in Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. However, she does not possess the specified qualifications for
a company secretary as required by Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Ms.
CHENG has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training

in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Given the important role of the Company Secretary in the corporate
governance function of the Company, particularly in assisting the Company
and the Directors in complying with the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations, the Company has also appointed Mr. KWOK Siu
Man (“Mr. KWOK”) who meets the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules as the other Joint Company Secretary with effect from 18
November 2015 to work closely with and provide assistance to Ms. CHENG
in discharge of the latter's duties and responsibilities as a Joint Company
Secretary. Mr. KWOK was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK)
Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as a Joint Company Secretary and Boardroom
has been providing certain corporate secretarial services to the Company
pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between the Company and
Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with whom Mr. KWOK has

been contacting in respect of company secretarial matters is Ms. CHENG.
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As Mr. KWOK was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong Kong
Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been acting
in such capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed on the
Stock Exchange at substantial times since then, he was not required to have
at least 15 hours of relevant continuous professional development training
under the Listing Rules for five consecutive years from 2012 (including the
Year). However, despite the above exemption, Mr. KWOK had delivered and

attended over 15 hours’ relevant seminars during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below
is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and

put forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566-569 of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the“Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s) holding
at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right
to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the Company,

require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (ii) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be

moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s)
and such meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice

convening the meeting.
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If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the
notice of the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business
that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been
included in such notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed as a
special resolution, the Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting,
the text of the resolution and specifies the intention to propose the resolution

as a special resolution.

If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request, the
Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a

general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (ii) in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the

Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must

be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Section 580 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder may
request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other

business to be dealt with at any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at
the meeting; or (ii) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote on

a proposed resolution at the meeting.
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The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and must
be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The
expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s)
who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i) the Company
resolves otherwise or (ii) the meeting to which the requests related is an
AGM; or (iii) requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the
statement are received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the

statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
or change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share
registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be
directed to the Investor Relations Representative of the Company whose
contact details are shown under “Shareholder Information” of this annual

report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The new articles of association of the Company were adopted at the AGM

held on 24 June 2016.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “EDs")

Mr. ZHAO Yao

Chairman of the Board, ED and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 53, was appointed as an ED on 27 November 2012, and as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on
14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company
on 23 January 2015. Mr. ZHAO has almost 29 years of experience in
the textile industry. He joined China National Textiles Import and Export
Corporation* (#F B %5 4% & 3 1 0 42 A &) (“General Corporation”), the
predecessor of Chinatex Corporation* (% Bl 45 £ B /A 7]) (“Chinatex”) in
1987 and held positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the General
Manager of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and
General Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (1 #%f
SREEEIEFMR A, General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (B3I 4 ATIEEGR A F]), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (F#IMEEE AR A
7)), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng
Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EFAE L ZEEFE#HAER A F), Chairman of
Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( Fi&EFE =K #E AR
‘Ad]) , Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology
Co., Ltd.* ( E/ZEB X ERHLARAF]), Financial Manager of Wah Gar
Knitwear Factory Company Limited, General Manager of Suzhou Zhongfa
Property Management Co., Ltd.* (&M EFBR A A) and Vice
President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* ( BAxA K#k\ &4t ) , a subsidiary of
Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from
Renmin University of China in 1987. In December 2013, Mr. ZHAO obtained
a Senior Management Master’'s Degree of Business Administration awarded

by University of Texas at Arlington in the United States of America (“USA”).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. CHEN Minghong

Aged 50, was served as a NED for the period from 6 June 2012 to 27
November 2012. He was appointed as an ED on 23 January 2015. Mr.
CHEN has almost 24 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is
currently the General Manager of Chinatex Cotton Import and Export
Corporation* ( 1 45 8 & 3 i 0 2 7)) (“Chinatex Cotton”), a subsidiary
of Chinatex. Mr. CHEN joined General Corporation, the predecessor of
Chinatex, in March 1993. He served successively as the Deputy Manager
and Manager of the Cotton Department of Chinatex Cotton, Assistant to
General Manager and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex Cotton. Mr.
CHEN graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from the Department of
Foreign Languages of Tsinghua University in 1989.

Mr. LAN Jiang

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 46, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAN is currently a Director and the Deputy
General Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited. Mr. LAN has over 20
years of experience in the textiles industry. He joined General Corporation,
the predecessor of Chinatex, in 1994 and has held positions such as the
Financial Manager of Chinatex Shanghai Pudong Imp. & Exp. Co., the
Financial Manager, Director and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex (H.K.)
Holding Limited and a Director of Chinatex Capital Limited. He serves as
a Director of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited since
January 2017. Mr. LAN graduated with a Bachelor's Degree of Economics,
majoring in International Business Administration from the University of
International Business and Economics in China in 1994. Mr. LAN obtained a
Master's Degree of Executive Master of Business Administration awarded by

The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2015.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. YEN Gordon

Aged 47, has been a NED since 31 May 2013. Prior to that, he was the
Chief Financial Officer and an ED. He joined the Group in 1999 and was
then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before assuming the role of NED.
Dr. YEN is currently the Managing Director of Radiant Venture Capital
Limited and the Managing Partner of Radiant Tech Ventures Limited. He
also serves as an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the remuneration committee of Hopewell Holdings Limited, a company
listed in Hong Kong. Dr. YEN is a Member of the Henan Province Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the People’s
Republic of China; a director of GS1 HK Limited; and a director of the Hong
Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor's degree
in Manufacturing Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master of
Business Administration degree from McGill University, Canada and a Doctor

of Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. ZHANG Chong

Member of Audit Committee

Aged 46, was appointed as a NED and a member of the Audit Committee
on 6 June 2012. Mr. ZHANG is currently the General Manager of Investment
Management Department of Chinatex. Mr. ZHANG has over 21 years
of experience in the textiles industry. He joined General Corporation,
the predecessor of Chinatex, in 1995 and has held positions such as
the General Manager of Strategy Department, Deputy General Manager
of Strategy Department, General Manager of Investment Department,
and Deputy General Manager of Enterprise Management Department
of Chinatex, as well as Officer of Policy Research Office and Assistant
of Manager Office of General Corporation. Mr. ZHANG graduated with a
Master's degree in Business Management from the Faculty of Business
Administration, University of International Business and Economics, China
in 1995. Mr. ZHANG completed an Executive Master’'s degree in Business
Administration (EMBA) at China Europe International Business School

(CEIBS) in 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE
“INEDs”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Chairman of Audit Committee

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 66, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED. Mr. NG is a practising
accountant. He is also a non-executive director of Wah Ha Reality Company
Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce
Degree and a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill University, Canada and
a Diploma in Chinese Law from the University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG
is a Member of each of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Order
of Chartered Professional Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute
of Chartered Professional Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong, The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Society of

Registered Financial Planners in Hong Kong.

Mr. YING Wei

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and the member of the
Nomination Committee on 1 January 2015. Mr. YING is a non-practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. YING
holds a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of
San Francisco and a Bachelor Degree in Economics from the Zhejiang
Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of Commerce).
Mr. YING is the managing director of CDH Investments. Mr. YING is
currently an independent non-executive director of CHTC Fong’s Industries
Company Limited and a non-executive director of New Focus Auto Tech
Holdings Limited. Mr. YING was appointed as a Director of Chongging New
Century Cruise Co., Ltd on 27 May 2016, a company listed on Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. YING was also appointed as a non-executive director
of China Health Group Limited on 18 June 2016 and an independent non-
executive director of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited on 19 December

2016, both are listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Mr. William LAM

Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 58, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM is
a solicitor of the Hong Kong SAR and the Supreme Court of England and
Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong Kong. He graduated
from the University of Manchester, England in 1981 with a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical Engineering. His major subjects
included Computer Design, Power Transmission and Telecommunications.
He is also a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(M.I.E.E.E.) in USA. After obtaining his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws
at the Manchester Polytechnic (now known as Manchester Metropolitan
University), England and the College of Law in Chester, England,
respectively. Mr. LAM returned to Hong Kong in 1984 to work in family
business in Tai Sun Company (a member of Hong Kong and Kowloon
Textile), and Shing Fung Finance Company Limited, both founded by his
late-father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958 and 1972, respectively. In 1992,
Mr. LAM furthered his studies in law at the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as
a solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1994 and then in the
following year admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and
Wales. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded William Lam and Company, Solicitors to
start his own practice in law. Mr. LAM also serves in many areas. He is an
executive committee member of the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong
Community Organisations, the president of the University of Manchester
Alumni Association of Hong Kong and a member of the Technology
Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong and was a co-opted member of
the Chinese Temples Committee from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted
as the legal advisor of various organisations, such as the General Chamber
of Textiles, the Chamber of the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling
Association, the Hong Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong
Software Industry Association, the Public Surgeons United, the Government
Doctors’ Association, the Hong Kong Public Doctors’ Association and the

Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank.

60

MR EE

ERESEXS

BEZSEHS

5857 20165 A0R E R X BB IEHIT
ER ERZEEGIKERIEREEGZKE-
MEEREBFAITREMESBHMBBELH
SEf AN R BB IR EEIE A o R SE E 19814
EXNAEESHNIBABETRERTIRERE
B af FENEREEKET BERKRK
BEFAM BN EXRNEHREFIIRMESNE
B(M.LEEE) BREHRSHNTFEASNGES
TEM%ESBITEIE TSR (3752 TS
GREB)MEB LR BIRISEER MK E1984
FRBRERERKEER  EAXMAELER
1958F Bl AT R Al (BRYMmEHEE 2 —) A
1972F B S ROPK B B IS A IR A Bl TE - R R
19R2FEBRBRNBREER WERBEEREE
Z(PCLL) » ML ERIMUAFERK BB BB ES
BoERD  BERGRERAER LSS AR EA
B 1% N AE19994F A ST ARME AR 2 AR 1T o MRS A
EZEAE BEAEEABRERTELASELE
E REesMITRAERRG (B8 eR -BF
EME R ZE 8 g6 B M2009F £2015F AIFE A
BFZEgHBEE -MELEMEREEE B
Bee AAEKEE ESEMNEES &5
BERERETRELRBE BEBEZEALR
g BERMITEGE  REIIEB AR - BT
BERE BAAABRELENRS REBNEN
SEEE 2 AEER -



The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the

“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses including
the production and sale of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 82 to 180 of this annual report. No interim dividend
was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2016. The board of
Directors (the “Board”) has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.3 cents per share, amounting to HK$63,866,000, to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on the register of members on 5 July

2017 and the retention of the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on 22 June 2017
(Thursday), it is expected that the final dividend will be paid on or before 21
July 2017 (Friday).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the
performance for the Year and an indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report.
Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can
be found throughout this annual report, in particular the Risk Management
and Internal Control section under the Corporate Governance Report and
the Possible Risks and Uncertainties section of this Directors’ Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have occurred (if
any) can be found in this annual report and the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. An analysis using financial key performance indicators
is provided in the Financial and Statistical Highlights and the MD&A.
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact
on the Group can be found throughout this annual report, in particular, the

Corporate Governance Report.
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In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
relationships with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Policies
and Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and Awards &

Certifications section of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,

market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in
the prices of such raw materials could materially and adversely affect the

Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. The financial
uncertainty may affect the global textile and garment industry, which in turn
may affect the business of major retail brands and garment manufacturers,

which are the principal customers of the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group's fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other
pollutants and are subject to various environmental protection laws and
regulations in China and other countries where the Group’s production
facilities are located. Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with,
environmental protection laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur

additional costs and expenses.
In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience power, steam

or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may be

harmed.

62

AN AEEHBRERRREEHAREEEX
FENTIERFNENBERNT R RERAFR
TREMENRE HEREARRRRRABI K

RIERBEHD

RkEE

BIERR R T HAREE

7 £ B 10 7E LR T T B B3 3R 5 R A LR
BB BB EERBR RS BER-

FRA7 R B

AEBRERBFIORN R CLEERY) HE
R BAR » Ak 3R AT ] AP B SRR A R E AR 3R R
BRI HARENER KEXE MBHKRK
FIRERERTMEE -

M5 E KR

2R SIRPEIR ATEEHRNEER
EHRREERTNZE SR TIAHR KRR
EERHBEURITE MEXRGTEARTE
miE R RRER (RAKENERREF)INE
& o

LER R

RN E2 (B O T R AR E AR B TR BRUBE K S B At S5 D

I 78 52 H B8] e 7S % ) A E R vt AT E 3 B L A BRI 2R
B B RIRROAGI ROEBRBMRR - RIRAFIOER
R E AR B R AEBAREETRE A SOERA
ELAKREELRINERA LA

BN - AR B A ERE IR E S
TR AEENEBRELERES

ERBK S

wE R



Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying
out credit assessment and monitoring of asset quality. The Group has
established policies, procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure,
monitor, control and report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced
on an ongoing basis to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and

best practices in risk management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to Risk Management section under the MD&A

and note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 75 of

this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$256,485,000 to property,
plant and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the

Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as at
31 December 2016 amounted to HK$1,338,071,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$1,333,630,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as

follows:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. CHEN Minghong

Mr. LAN Jiang (appointed on 9 May 2016)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor (Vice-Chairman) (resigned on 19 May 2016)
Mr. GONG Zhengyi (retired on 24 June 2016)

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM (appointed on 9 May 2016)

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP (retired on 24 June 2016)

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr.
ZHAOQ Yao (“Mr. ZHAQ"), Mr. CHEN Minghong (“Mr. CHEN"), and Dr. YEN

Gordon (“Dr. YEN") will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-

election at the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 December 2016, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of its

subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 56 to 60 of this

annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”)), which were required: (a) to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) to be entered in the register referred to
therein (the “Register”) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (c) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules” and the “Model Code”, respectively), were as

follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”) and underlying

Shares:

Number of
Shares held
BERGHE

8,380,000

Name of Director
EEpE

Dr. YEN Gordon
BREEL

Capacity
5%

Beneficial owner
EmEA A
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Long positions in underlying Shares — Share options:

Exercise price

R FR B —BRE:

Number of
underlying
Shares comprised

in share options

Name of Director Date of grant per Share Exercise period BREMEESZ
BEEnE A S R 1T B T8 HERBEE
Dr. YEN Gordon 18.08.2011 HK$1.21 19.08.2012 - 18.08.2017 1,320,000
BREHELT 1.21%7T (Note) (H&F)
Note: Hiez -

50% of the share options are exercisable from 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 and all
share options are exercisable from 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), (a)
which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or (b) which were recorded in the Register or (c) as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”) and another share option scheme 20 January 2011 (the
“2011 Scheme”) respectively.

The 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 25 January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was to be
expired on 24 January 2012 and was early terminated on 20 January 2011.
The primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme was to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such other
purposes as the Board may approve from time to time. All the share options

granted under the 2002 Scheme were lapsed in the Year.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the Company adopted the new 2011 Scheme
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on the same date. The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January

2021.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, Directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover
only Directors and full-time employees. Under the 2011 Scheme, share
options comprising 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 Shares were granted on
18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing prices of the
Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were HK$1.80 and

HK$1.21 each, respectively.

Other particulars and movements of the Company’s share option schemes,
namely the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during the Year, are set out

in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons/entities (other than a

FERRREMALES

M20165F12 A31H ' RIEA R RIIRFH R BHE K
PIE336IEMIFE < EF 2R AM ([EEZHRERA
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of it |)&28% FHIA L BEE (KAARESZHITH
interests of the substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company — #&&i R 918 ) AR (D K ABRE A% (5 h HE B RS SR 2
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ % :

Director or the chief executive of the Company) had interests and short

Register”).

Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares:

R kAR FREER:

Approximate % of

Number of the issued Shares
Name of substantial shareholders Shares held Capacity HIEEBRITRG
FTERRER BERGHE &4 BoL
Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) 433,494,000 Interest of controlled corporations 35.97
RERSEEAR ([F4]) (Notes 1 and 2) %A E R R
(Hizt1%2)
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 33.94
Co., Ltd. (“Yieldfull”) (Note 1) EmEAA
RREREEBERAG (Bi7E1)
(raZl)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment 409,036,000 Interest of a controlled corporation 33.94
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui”) (Note 1) = 1l E B A i
FAREREEEBRETAR (Htet1)
(812 ])
Mr. HA Chung Fong (“Mr. HA") 97,938,000 Beneficial owner 8.13
BEMFEE([BEXRE]) (Note 3) EnEA A
(#17#3)
69,160,948 Other interests 5.74
(Notes 3 and 5) H fth i 2
(Kt#3%5)

* For identification purpose only

Y ERBESE
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Approximate % of

Number of the issued Shares
Name of substantial shareholders Shares held Capacity KB RITRE
FTERRER BERGHAE 514 BoL
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 167,098,948 Spouse’s interests 13.87
B8 IR 2r & (Note 3) Be (B 4
(K1#£3)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 69,160,948 Beneficial owner 5.74
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 4 and 5) EnEa A
(Kia4k5)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 69,160,948 Interest of a controlled corporation 5.74
(“Island Treasure”) (Notes 4 and 5) ZEHEB RS
(KtaFak25)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 69,160,948 Trustee 5.74
ZH(HB)BRAR ([ZH]) (Notes 4 and 5) SEEA
(H1a£455)
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles 69,160,948 Interest of controlled corporations 5.74
(“Mr. WONG”) (Notes 4 and 5) P22 )% B O 2
FRREE(TEELEE]D (Kia4k5)
Notes:

Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui and Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex. Therefore, each of Jinhui and Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Yieldfull. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27
July 2016, Chinatex will be a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, which
is a state-wholly-owned enterprise in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council of the PRC.

As at 31 December 2016, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited held 24,458,000 Shares
as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinatex. Chinatex is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinatex (H.K.)
Holding Limited.

Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Mr. HA.

Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure, Island Treasure is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by Mr. WONG.
Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and Mr. WONG is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Super Brilliance.

Onwide is the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA for the
benefit of his family.

BERSFEZZEAWBAR MBE/THZEZEN
BAom-Et SERTHEARGERERENF
MR 2 R 25 - AN A 1R 7] B B A20164E7 A27H 2 A
ERE RO ATREEN2ENBAR B8
SEARTEKRINEACERATERBREAEE
EEEEEZESEREE2EMBAR-

R20165F 128310 4 (BB ERER R BFE
24,458,000f e th (EREZEAAN) - H (F8)
BRARARATHZEZEMBRR Bt FHK
BIEBEATS (BB ZERER D RIPTRAR () 2 fas o

HRKR L REREZRE AMKEFEEEELE
ZiEstiapd: £k

Super Brilliance&lsland TreasureZ =& M /& A &) -
Island Treasure R Mz 2 EMB AR - MELEHEA
ZHE 2z - AL - Island Treasure * A1 & F 56
4 & B AR {E#E A Super Brilliance T iR 19 2 #2 ©

ZHAHA Trusti) Z5EA » HA TrustB B £ 4 B ER K
2 M Ak S B — BRI B (S35
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were
not aware of any persons who/entities which had any interest and short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company), which were required to be recorded in the

Substantial Shareholders’ Register.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may

sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability

insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report below and note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December

2016 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January
2017 to the date of this Report are available on the Company’s website at

www.fshl.com.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued its letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements (the “Continuing
Connected Transactions”) in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing Connected
Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 41 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the Continuing
Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board; (b) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) had
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the respective cap amounts
in respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions, except as

disclosed in note 41(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and

confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

Shareholders as a whole.
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PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor
did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such

securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in

accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the

remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by
the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. No Directors or executives, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in dealing with his

own remuneration.

The Company has adopted the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme as
an incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of which are
set out in the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” section above, note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and under the section headed “Share-

based Payment Transactions” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly with the

business of the Group.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information
of Directors since the date of the 2016 Interim Report of the Company

required to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

(i) Dr. YEN Gordon has been appointed as the management partner of
Radiant Tech Ventures Limited with effect from 18 November 2016;

(i)  Mr. YING Wei was appointed as a director of Chongging New Century
Cruise Co., Ltd on 27 May 2016, a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He has been also appointed as a non-executive director
of China Health Group Limited with effect from 18 June 2016, and
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited with effect from 19 December
2016; and

(i) Mr. LAN Jiang has served as a director of Hong Kong General Chamber

of Textiles Limited since January 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five

largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers accounted for 32% of the total purchases for the Year.
The amount of purchases from the Group’s largest supplier represented

approximately 13.8% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates nor any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s number of issued shares) had any beneficial interest in the

Group's five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year.

BEHEE(EE)FRAT 2016FFH
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

FHRAEISIB(L)RFIB2EEE
B E
2 EMARBIEIIBIBGRZ AR E - BRENARF
HE2016FHBAEERERAAREETNERE
o

(i) EE#IELN2016F11718HEZTAZR]
RAKREBRRARIZEEABA:

(i) FEELEEN2016F5A27BEZTREE
AR BHEBRNBER AR CES  ZA A AR
YIEHRZ Sz ETRA K INR20165F6
A18H K20165F12A19R » B E R T A
BEEEEEERARRFASEIERGRA
AZHEPITEERBIUFNTES K

(i) EEIEAEB2017F1AMRBET AT
AEeE-

EEEN
RAEER  B|ATTRFERRARAEB 2
REMEARSAEWOERRITRAL -

FEEFRHESD

AEBAFERAZOAEFPREERRABIRN
30% °

AEBAFEAZSAREARGRBRREL
32% o KB ARNEBEZAMERHRBREGEE
BIRIBREA13.8% °

FR EFHNRENEMETHEASEMBRR
(RLEFEMRAEG AR BB BTN EE 5%
PIBERTEERATF R/ SARHEET
BAEAEDER-

73



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHE

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$1,014,000 (2015: HK$208,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 55 of this annual

report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as the share options granted with details set out under the section
headed "Share Option Schemes” in this report, no equity-linked agreements

subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued Shares throughout the

Year and the period thereafter up to the date of this Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision
over the Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management. The Audit Committee presently comprises 1 NED and 2
INEDs, and 1 of the INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited final results and the systems

of internal control and risk management of the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint BDO
Limited as the independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
23 March 2017
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REMRFR

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2016 are as follows:

M2016F12A31H  NREBKREWERHNFFBNT :

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
o 36 HEFH ke AEBEE N ER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit A1 on 7/F,, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, FHIFRE BEERBAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
EIB # 2B 2 2 3K 29-395%
REIERE
SIEA2ZE R7IEALZE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and Medium-term land Office 100%
12, Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights /N
Shenzhen, the PRC o 8t 3t 8
Fh B3R I T 4% H 2 8 0] B R R F B A2 B R
5 IS ATR B 12
A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08107112
Factory Nos. 5-6, 9 and 11 Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BERRAE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, Fh B+ 2 {5 B 4
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
I EHNT B 2R TR I H% TR E & F} 5 3866-685%
2 A5E6 - ORI HE
3/F and 5/F of Dormitory Block No. 3 Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights s
Xiangshan Industry Zone, R H £ b (R A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
FR BT T & B8R T 3R 1L B T2 B [ F 25 R 66-6855%
HeAEEE=—RE=MELRE
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshun Road, High-tech Zone, use rights 558
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC Fp B 4 3 (5 A A

BT #F & TR2 = % (@ &8 1L BROsk 55
A JE &7 7 B s A5 5R
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|IBDO

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 82 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance

with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

Impairment of inventories

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products are typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the
Group will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation
of orders. The Group maintains a sophisticated information technology
system to keep track of the aging and utilisation of inventories and materials

regarded as wastage for the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-
aged, the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$194,868,000 as at

year end by reference to estimated net realisable value of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because
the estimates of net realisable value and how materials are regarded
as wastage on which this impairment entailed a significant degree of

management judgement.

Our response:
We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment

assessment of inventories which included:

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable value and discussing

them with management;

- challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our

knowledge of the business and industry;

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of
inventories and estimate the net realisable value of those inventories;

and

- testing controls over recording impairment of inventories.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in

this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free

from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.
The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging

their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number PO4659

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReERaRAMEEKRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #;£2016512A31H [FFE

Notes 1%

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains and losses
Distribution and selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

Profit before income tax expense

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share

— Basic

— Diluted
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E7

H sl A

H oz R B 18
DIERIHERR
TBER
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FEMh— = ARl Z &K

BR T 15 Bt 32 H AT B A

PSRz th

EE=FER
ZIN/NETE? DN
FEYR R aR

BRAF
—&R

— 58

F :

J

17

12

12

2016

HK$°000 ¥t

2015

HK$'000 F&T

6,328,714 6,653,051
(5,553,590) (5,845,4006)
775,124 807,645
48,338 57,492
(48,452) (26,496)
(163,756) (191,745)
(424,275) (469,362)
(19,506) (26,166)
595 839
168,068 152,207
(18,076) (24,133)
149,992 128,074
127,903 99,860
22,089 28,214
149,992 128,074
HK cents Efl HK cents &1l
10.6 8.3

10.6 8.3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FERRRRMEZEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 # Z2016512H31H ILFE

2016 2015
Note K&+ HK$'000 F#& T HK$'000 F& T

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Net gain arising on revaluation of

available-for-sale financial assets

during the year

Exchange differences arising on

translation of foreign operations

Release upon disposal of available-

for-sale financial assets

Other comprehensive expense

for the year

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

=EERA 9 149,992 128,074
H i 2wk S
(AEMBRBIE)
HETEEHIES
Em2HEE:
FREGHAHR
HESRMEEELY
I 25 2B 1,410 426
BMEGINEREEZ
& =% (16,051) (10,288)
BEAHHE
EMEEREDL (3,012) -
REEHME2EAX
(17,653) (9,862)
EEEXENREEAE
132,339 118,212
EBEREE
EREAE:
ViN/NEIEZ PN 116,000 94,368
FEFEE AR 7 16,339 23,844
132,339 118,212
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R e MBI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 #2016 12H31H

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

M2016F12A31H R2015%12A31H
Notes [ 7% HK$'000 F# 7T HK$000 F# T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties BEME 13 67,410 74,551
Property, plant and equipment I ER LY 14 1,463,317 1,412,120
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion ~ FRNHEERIE - ERBHBD 15 99,115 102,020
Other intangible assets HEihEREE 16 21,617 24,888
Interest in an associate R—FREE R A2 Ex 17 16,900 16,305
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBREZEE 19 20,050 38,345
Deferred tax assets ELEHRBEEE 18 49,909 39,721
1,738,318 1,707,950
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 1,401,911 1,410,330
Trade and bills receivables EEREEENE 21 1,209,330 1,313,533
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRAFE Ze REMEKRIE 22 136,420 116,765
Prepaid lease payments - current portion BREERE-RBDD 15 2,600 2,606
Tax recoverable A e B e 4,479 2,104
Restricted bank deposits R EIRITER 23 10,406 7,043
Short-term bank deposits RERIER 24 177,660 183,917
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRE 24 690,491 686,306
3,633,297 3,722,604
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and bills payables LERZBREMNTR 25 752,140 851,477
Other payables and accruals H e 308 K B E B 26 322,845 343,499
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders IR R B 27 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—[EH & N RFIA 27 5,499 7,080
Deferred income - current portion EEWA-FBEHS 28 1,592 1,458
Tax payable B HiIE 20,912 31,376
Bank and other borrowings — RITREMEE - —FREH
due within one year 29 488,191 494,619
1,671,279 1,809,609
Net current assets TBEEFE 1,962,018 1,912,995
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRADEE 3,700,336 3,620,945
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Bk R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016 720165 12H31H

At 31 December 2016

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income - non-current portion
Bank and other borrowings - due
after one year
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Other reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

The consolidated financial statements on pages 82 to 180 were approved

At 31 December 2015

R2016%12A31H 2015412 A31H
Notes ft 7% HK$'000 F# 75 HK$000 Fi# T
FRBEE
BN - ERBHS 28 60,370 60,760
FIIREMEE -
— 5 29 179,453 159,225
EXEHIEAR 18 6,868 6,204
246,691 226,189
EEFE 3,453,645 3,394,756
BARR G
AR 30 865,716 865,716
Hiff 2,432,336 2,364,829
ARRBEE AERER 3,298,052 3,230,545
E3E T 31 155,593 164,211
BHAE 3,453,645 3,394,756

E82E180E WA MB MR EN201743 423

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2017 and HESSRARZAEZI YA TINESKESE

are signed on its behalf by:

=
ZHAO Yao LAN Jiang
Fich BT
Director Director
EFE o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEREER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

B ZE2016F12A31HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAREEAER
Investment Share Non-
Share  revaluation  Translation options Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
RESf
R& i ERRE BRERE LIERE  REEAN HE  FEREZ  BR8E
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FAET FET
(note)
(Hiit)
At 1 January 2015 R2015%1A1H 862,211 - (35,512) 14,830 80,160 2,260,839 3,182,528 143,095 3,325,623
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations ER=%E = = (5,918) - - = (5,918) (4,370) (10,288)
Net gain arising on revaluation of ~ EREfEALHE
available-for-sale financial assets ~ S BEEELZ
during the year Wiz % (E - 426 - - - - 426 - 426
Profit for the year = FERA - - - = = 99,860 99,360 28214 128,074
Total comprehensive income/ REERENS/
(expense) for the year (Fx)@eE - 426 (5,918) - - 99,860 94,368 23,844 118212
Equity-settled share-based INEREEURD
payments reverse BERZ 5 ERD - - - (546) - - (546) - (546)
Dividend recognised as distribution B HRBD RS = = - - - (48,201) (48,201) - (48,201)
Transfer from retained earnings HEFRNRARE
to investment revaluation reserve  REEfEFEE R
and statutory reserves ETHE - 1,805 - - 17,254 (19,059) - - -
Transfer from share options BERERERARE
reserve to retained earnings REBH - - - (5,716) - 5716 = = =
Dividends paid to non-controlling Bt S FIERER
shareholders - - - - - - - (2,728) (2,728)
Exercise of share options TEERE 3,505 - - (1,109) - - 2,39 - 2,396
At 31 December 2015 2015124310 865,716 2,231 (41,430) 7,459 97,414 2,299,155 3,230,545 164,211 3,394,756
Exchange differences arising on BEBNEBEEL
translation of foreign operations ER=%E - - (10,301) - - - (10,301) (5,750) (16,051)
Net gain arising on revaluation FREM[ARLE
of available-for-sale financial SREEEEYL
assets during the year WsFE - 1,410 - - - - 1,410 - 1,410
Release upon disposal of available- 52 & A {£ i &
for-sale financial assets CREEREN - (3,012) - - - - (3,012) - (3,012)
Profit for the year = FERA - - - - - 127,903 127,903 22,089 149,992
Total comprehensive (expense)/ =FERAE (BX)/
income for the year hnaE - (1,602) (10,301) - - 127,903 116,000 16,339 132,339
Equity-settled share-based INEREE ARG
payments reverse BER FHEE - - - (292) - - (292) - (292)
Dividend recognised as distribution 2 H#R AR TR 2K E. - - - - - (48,201) (48,201) - (48,201)
Transfer from retained earnings BEFRARRE
to statutory reserves EERE - - - - 2,263 (2,263) - - -
Transfer from share options reserve BB RIERERAEE
to retained earnings BB - - - (6,352) - 6,352 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling 28 FIHERER
shareholders - - - - - - - (24,957) (24,957)
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12A31H 865,716 629 (51,731) 815 99,677 2,382,946 3,298,052 155,593 3,453,645

Note: The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of profit

Wit

after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported under the
PRC statutory financial statements. According to the provision of the articles of
association of the subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only be used for making up
losses,capitalisation into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s operation

and for the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff and workers.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ReHeERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #£2016512A31H IFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax expense
Adjustments for:
Government grants
Amortisation of deferred income
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Equity-settled share-based payments reverse

Finance costs

Interest income

Loss on disposal/written-off of property,
plant and equipment

Share of profit of an associate

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment loss recognised on
trade and bills receivables, net

Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised
on other receivables

Release of prepaid lease payments

Operating profit before working capital changes

Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and bills receivables
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to an associate

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

EEBEMENESRE
BR P15 542 AT & A
B

TR R Rl

AL ON:O: £

BREMEZNE

MmE RERIEZIFE

Ht B AR 2 B

DB 2 A B DAY ) B 2 (9 SR
BERAK

FEHA

HE/EHENE BBERRE
ZE#H

il N

REUHHESHEEMENRE

ERAEERZBREIKIELZ
REBKFE

Hftn EHCRIE 2 R BB &
(), HR

BRAEREEN

%%&xﬁﬁ%ﬁ52ﬁ9
BNFRE R RABRRRIELZ
(2n) /B
BERFBRATIEZ CRD) /10
HthENFOA R B BAZ Ofd) /B
R—FBEARFRIERZ (RD) /10

WEFE2RS
EREBHEH
B 185158

EEREMBNREERE

2016 2015
HK$'000 F &7t HK$'000 T8
168,068 152,207
(3,805) (3,739)
(1,507) (1,458)
3,896 4,049
174,756 190,128
3,271 3,246
(292) (546)
19,506 26,166
(4,587) (8,324)
13,283 5161
(595) (839)
(751) -
21,401 25,159
(483) 1,665
2,601 2,610
394,762 395,485
3,369 (110,598)
62,184 29,675
(21,844) 7,631
(74,505) 68,133
(20,657) 75,041
(1,581) 7,080
341,728 472,447
(5,947) (1,308)
(28,766) (19,914)
307,015 451,225
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REleRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 #Z2016512H31H IEFE

2016 2015
Notes fifz# HK$'000 F% 7w HK$000 F/ET

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ¥ EBEFENREEFE 307,015 451,225

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REERFiENEALRE

Interest received B F & 4,487 8,279
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BB RFEMERE

plant and equipment 2,433 2,413
Proceeds from disposal of available-forsale BB AIEHESBEEFEZE

financial assets 16,538 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E#W¥  EE LR 4 (256,485) (117,811)
Additions of prepaid lease payments BTG - (23)
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMENAE 16 - (488)
Net movement in derivative financial instruments #7144 B T 2 & &) % (& - (1,686)
Increase in restricted bank deposits SR FIRITEFIE N (3,363) (7,043)
Government grants received BBk 5,056 3,739
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES #REBEBFANEESEE (231,334) (112,620)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEERFiENELRE

Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTREMEE (1,376,979) (2,019,757)
Interest paid EfIFE (16,790) (28,667)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 2 f3% 8 F JFZ Rk R (24,957) (2,728)
Dividends paid BRKRE (48,201) (48,201)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR S R - 2,39
New bank and other borrowings raised HEEZRITREMEE 1,389,965 1,676,372
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEBFFANELEE (76,962) (420,585)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND BEeRERBSEANRD FE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,281) (81,980)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REFERRENEESRSRAELER

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 870,223 956,085

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ExRHHRERERAHSHANTE

ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (791) (3,882)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RREFERGRNEERERREER

THE END OF THE YEAR 868,151 870,223
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReREFREBELFEN DN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Short-term bank deposits RHRTER 177,660 183,917
Bank balances and cash RITEBRKRE 690,491 686,306
868,151 870,223
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to the

annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which

is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull
Investments Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is Chinatex Corporation, a state-
owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration of,
and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and

Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective on 1 January
2016

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

in Joint Operations

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s

financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have

not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to

apply these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendment to HKFRS 2

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 10

Disclosure Initiative!

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses!

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions?

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*
HKFRS 16 Leases?®
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
4 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early

application of the amendments continues to be permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%AL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative
The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax assets and clarify
some of the necessary considerations, including how to account for deferred

tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transaction

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment transactions with a
net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the

classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and

equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to

better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for

derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes existing
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11

Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to revenue

recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
o Step b: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures

related to revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on identification of
performance obligations; application of principal versus agent; licenses of

intellectual property; and transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”
and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability
into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee accounting
for leases that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor

standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to

account for those two types of leases differently.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised when
an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture. When
the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated

investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting

policies and financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis

except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which

is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12
months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration

classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements

of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and

receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the

investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are
initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted
for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net
assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate

are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of
the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of

the asset transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in

the same way as other non-financial assets.

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties net of expected residual
value over the estimated useful live using straight-line method. The useful
life, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and

the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The useful lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 2% — 4.5% or period of
the lease term

10% - 33%

10% - 20%

20% — 30%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Plant and machinery
Motor vehicles

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying

amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is

recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the

term of the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(g) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses
the classification of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the

inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line

basis.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised
in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 10% —20% or period of the contract term
(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they

may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing

their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(n)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j) Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending on
the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace

concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers (trade debtors),
and also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are

recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether there is
any objective evidence that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and
that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial

asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s financial difficulty;

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated

future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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REMBERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit

or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the

amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets
Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognised

in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments are
subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of
the investments can be objectively related to an event occurring after the

recognition of impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss is not reversed.

104

4. FEFTHER (H)

() ®MIA (&)

(i) EBEEZHEAK (F)

B3R A IROR 0 BR L L RO R R R

& R WGRIRRR SN HERE(E T8 B B &
FRAMBE - BEHRENEREEZHNEBREN

R o M2 ZEFEUCRIBRAR A AW E - RN BHA
AR S o 1R UG OB A M RO SR ET AR &R
B o

AR B REBR SRR MR A=
Bl B EIR KRR BEENEMHER - BILA
ERHRERXEBERED HEZEENED
HEE B RAENSBREYEERRENTS
MTRBENDHEHEKA -

R E T HEE
WRFEERDBRRENTEER AEES
BEEDHER RN ERRARER -

IR E AFEE 2 LN B AR ER KR
A 2R AIRTEEEEBRE 2RER
RERGNBEFED -

At ERAERRE N RERRENEAAT
EE IR AN TH H 2 [ W s A RERR

BRADRA SRR ERERSS
BIONEERAERRBUSREENRRTS
EHXFRNGFTRKREREREMENER
AE-BRRERKTEERD



EEHEE(EE)FREE 20165 FH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(j)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for

which the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are

initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders,
bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate,

a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the

relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within one year when acquired, which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances

and cash which are not restricted as to use.

(I) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the

grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the

useful lives of the related assets.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss

previously recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

o investment properties;

o property, plant and equipment;
o prepaid lease payments;

° other intangible assets; and

o interest in an associate;

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate the reflects current market assessments of the time value of

money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(0) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can

be measured reliably.

Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis

over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can

be measured reliably.

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAN%F!AL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(@) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of
these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property over time,

rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also

recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are used.
All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term monetary items forming
part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as

foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or

loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after
the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year

when the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

(t) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share

options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in

profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credited to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share

options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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4,
(u)
(a)

(ii)
(iii)

(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

=

(viii

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the

Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key

management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may

be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)
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that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical
or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used
in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated useful
lives and/or the residual values of items of property, plant and equipment
are difference from previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at each financial year end date based on changes in

circumstances.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are different from

expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be

required.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others (i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Bangladesh, Vietnam and
Macau). All of these geographical areas are operating segments except

“Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by

reportable segment for the year.

6. EXBERIBER
ARRAEEE (NIBLEREE)REEFFH
TEE TR #) b BT B SE BB G KRB 7

B BRER (KAKEMEL) PEARKLM
B([hE]) - -&& BE HEH R M- BUM

KEME (A bR E T2 AH M
BEFRMA) ARSI EREENE M
[HEfpiple | QSR e 2 &N R

UTAAEEREFERBEEREERH #
KRB BB RN 2 EFRBRAFIAKE
BFTIEZ DT o

2016 20164
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  Sri Lanka America Europe Others total Eliminations Consolidated
B8 E Al BE HE®F M BN HtthE SELE Hi A
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FAT FET FET FAT FAT FET FET FAT FET FET
Revenue BEE
External sales HINHE 1,439,830 1,119,663 631,045 1,166,770 751,178 407,387 48,589 764,252 6,328,714 - 6328714
Inter-segment sales PERHE
(note) (Hizt) 4414472 2,369,402 - - 362,057 28,732 - 152,250 7,326,913 (7,326,913) -
Total segment revenue D iEE £ H4E 5,854,302 3,489,065 631,045 1,166,770 1,113,235 436,119 48,589 916,502 13,655,627 (7,326,913) 6,328,714
Results E3
Segment profit PEEF 133,033 108,964 54,950 101,603 73,728 38,005 4,248 69,442 583,973
Interest income FIEMWA 4,587
Unallocated income RABERA 2,997
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation (184,524)
Other unallocated Hip R AE 2 E
expenses (220,054)
Finance costs BEKA (19,506)
Share of profitofan Mt —FEE A7
associate 2B 595
Profit before income  FRET/SH ST it AT &7
tax expense 168,068
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=& M8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXBERISEER (&)
(Continued)
2015 2015%F
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  SriLanka America Europe Others fotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
s # aE e HEEFR EM BN EtE  SBR8E #i 58
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FAT FET FET FET FiET FAT FET FET FAT FAT
Revenue 1
External sales HINEE 1430114 1194748 770123 1059345 814559 390323 81,006 912833 6,653,051 - 6,653,051
Inter-segment sales PERHE
(note) (Hrat) 4,774,710 2,677,060 - - 421331 72,388 - 172293 8,117,782 (8117,782) -
Total segment revenue  DBEEEBLE 6,204,824 3,871,808 770,123 1,059,345 1,235,890 462,711 81,006 1,085,126 14,770,833 (8,117,782) 6,653,051
Results £
Segment profit PEEF 123,890 90,677 68,940 96,395 92,648 30,808 7,493 83,865 594,716
Interest income FEKRA 8,324
Unallocated income RABBA 8,315
Depreciation and FEREH
amortisation (200,033)
Other unallocated Ht R A
expenses (234,288)
Finance costs BEKA (26,166)
Share of profit of FEfL— R AR
an associate P 839
Profit before income  FRET/S R ST it AT &7
tax expense 152,207
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price with reference to the prevailing market rates. HtiF: DEREEZEERN2SBERZTSERMEE -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, loss on disposal/written-
off of property, plant and equipment, net gain from derivative financial
instruments, gain from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, finance
costs, share of profit of an associate, etc.. This is the measure reported
to the board of directors of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on segment assets and
liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the board of directors of the

Company.

6. EXERIBEH (K

AERmO B G BERAN FAML 2 A EE G5
BERAER - D BB F o8& 0 BRI ZF] -
ERYEFAPRITBERAREMER (B1RIF
HAEERZERERNFAX EEME RITER
%) EREHE FISKA HE ZHEDME.
KRk BE TESRT A Z KaEFE
REAHEESREE 2 WE BEKAE  BIE—
BB & QB2 BAE - T RERD B R AERY
EMAAAREEEERCEE - HOREER
BEXWLBEEIMEE BZERRERAR
AEFEZ7-

Other segment information HiHEER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: BEREAGENERF &5
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others  Consolidated
5 HE =) ] ®H HE@HF =M B Hitih & e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
2016 20165
Impairment loss (reversed)/ & % K& 15 U
recognised on radeand ~ FIEZRERK
bills receivables, net (BE)/HDHE 292 15,822 (1,007) 1,355 (153) 22) 1 5,115 21,401
2015 20154
Impairment loss (reversed)/ % % & Z i fe it
recognised on trade and REZRERR
bills receivables, net (BE) /R FE 13,267 10,468 420 418 444 (38) (1) 181 25,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from the Group’s products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers

by products:

=& M8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

6. EXERIEESN (K)

AEEEMCERS
ATARERESARBRENIESEER
HH -

2016 2015
HK$'000 F# 75 HK$000 % 7T

Production and sales of dyed fabrics and yarns NERHEBHRY
Production and sales of garments B RHERK

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-

current assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

5,461,209 5,626,076
867,505 1,026,975
6,328,714 6,653,051

Ho 120 E Y
R|ERL AEBZIFRBDEE (f/a2) L
B2 DMMT:

At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%F12A31H 12015F12A31H
HK$'000 T 7 HK$000 F %

The PRC T
Hong Kong B
America EM
Sti Lanka LES RS
Others H it &

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and investment in life insurance
policies.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

1,470,256 1,427,220
39,832 42,903

- 87

158,086 159,465
185 209
1,668,359 1,629,884

Bt : FERBEETBEELERREERASRBRELZ
BE-

BRETERFZEH

B Z2016F 128318 1L F & R B E20155127
BIRLSFE KEENEF2EXBEASEE
RREFEYEBEI0% -
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FaMBEHREME
31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12A31H
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAK
2016 2015
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F/& T
Finance costs on: BE R :
Bank and other borrowings FITREMES 19,506 26,166
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE FR&H X H
2016 2015
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F& 7T
Current tax: EFEERE:
Hong Kong B 2,371 4,449
The PRC e 15,893 20,307
Other jurisdictions H b AE M & 7,604 11421
25,868 36,177
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BEFEREBAR/ (BERE):
Hong Kong N (40) (48)
The PRC H 1,717 167
Other jurisdictions HAt )k 59 (568)
1,736 (449)
27,604 35,728
Deferred tax (note 18): BRI (Hi218) -
Hong Kong BB 291 2
The PRC i (10,319) (11,421)
Other jurisdictions HirlEE 500 (176)
(9,528) (11,595)
18,076 24,133

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December 2015: 16.5%) HAEMEMNIZRFE 2 ET R EF A

of the estimated assessable profit for the year. 16.5% (2015912 A31H : 16.5% ) Z i Rzt & -
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of Sri

Lanka subsidiary is 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before income
tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before income tax expense

Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or
losses in the jurisdiction concerned
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
Under/(over) provision in prior years
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised
Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously
not recognised
Effect on opening deferred tax balances
resulting from an decrease/(increase)
in applicable tax rate
Deferred tax (reversed)/provided on
withholding tax on overseas subsidiaries
Others

Tax charge for the year

BAERX LA RT

EEBAHLERRARERZ
B BEHHOTE
R FENROBETE

WABERBOT B E
BAFERETR/ (BERE
REBBAGRERNTBY 2
HpEEF BRREROH ST 2
ERBEABERNFRIESSR

ERAERERERNEMETHE

ERRERD /(RN HETHE
HMEmeTE

R = WNIREE N (i)
EEBIR (ED) /B
Afts

REEHEX

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year increased which is
caused by changes in profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective

countries they are operating.

TS M3 R R

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

8. i< (&)

EW¢I¢¥% SHE ([REMERE]) kb
FifSFUEBE RG] R BIME AR Z B K AE25% °

RIEMBEMREBEZEEEER HEM KB
RAZTE /2% ©

Hitp AhAE < BB A A S B AR B
BRRLERIBZ FBHNHIEELS -

REERGEBEHEREMEEWER IR H
HERAEH A BN ASRNAT

2016 2015
HK$'000 %75 HK$'000 % 7T

168,068 152,207
15,177 13,303
14,167 4,970
(1,669) (2,435)

1,736 (449)
1,783 13,606
9,746 5,139

(19,172) (8,136)

(3,850) (1,653)
455 (211)
(298) 4

1 (5)
18,076 24,133

£ 4 [ MAE T AR £ Tt A 8 2 it
BAARKEEEFESE 2 RFEH S B
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12A31H
9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories sold (note /)
Depreciation of investment properties (note 13)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 14)
Employee costs (including Directors’ emoluments
set out in note 10)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property,
plant and equipment?
Net exchange losses?
Impairment loss recognised on trade and
bills receivables, net?
Impairment loss recognised on other receivables, net?
Release of prepaid lease payments
Amortisation of other intangible assets (note 16)°

and after crediting:

Amortisation of deferred income!

Interest income!

Net rental income from investment properties!

Net exchange gain®

Net gain from derivative financial instruments?
Impairment loss reversed on other receivables, net?
Government grants (note /i)*

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets?

1 Included in other revenue

2 Included in other gains and losses
3 Included in administrative expenses
Notes:

9. EFEEX
2016 2015
HK$'000 F# 7% HK$000 FE T
REEBFEMRTIZE:
2 2R 2 3 B 3,063 2,908
FEHEKA (Hi7ti) 5,553,590 5,845,406
REMEZNE (H713) 3,896 4,049
ME BERRENE (fiF14) 174,756 190,128
EEXA (BESNMFIOZEZHE)
947,128 988,758
HE/HENE BER
R iR 13,283 5,161
[E 5 E1a 3 @2 15,002 -
BRAZERZEEKFIEZ
B{EE X FE? 21,401 25,159
BRAEMEWRIE 2R ERKFE? - 1,665
BNAETEEH 2,601 2,610
HiERBE B3 (M716)° 3,271 3,246
REFATIIEE:
BTy 5! 1,507 1,458
FlEdAL 4,587 8,324
REMENHSRAFE 10,156 9,331
B 5 i 2 5 (B2 - 5,441
THESRT A v WzsFE? - 48
H A I FRIE 2 R (B 1B K O3B 483 =
BRIT R 8G (#azi)! 3,805 3,739
REAHHESHEE 2 W2 751 -
1 eEEEMKAR
2 OEEHMKEREER
3  BEEARBAR
Bt
FEHERABIEL 598,598,000/ T (20154 :

(i) Cost of inventories sold includes HK$1,598,598,000 (2015: HK$1,684,468,000) (i)

of staff costs, depreciation, subcontracting fee, provision/(reversal) of write-down
of inventories and other manufacturing overheads, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

(i) Government grants mainly represent grants of HK$3,092,000 (2015: HK$2,743,000)
received from the PRC local government authority as subsidies to the Group for
(a) acquiring certain property, plant and equipment for energy saving scheme and
environmental protection scheme implemented by the PRC local government; (b)
incentive of foreign trade; and (c) incentive of steady growth of business.

There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.
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1,684,468,000/7C) B TRKA - HT&E - INT &M - 7E8H
TRZEE, (BE) REMREER  WEBHE NS
BREELXMEESERS 2 BEEER -

(i) BT A 25 REUR B H B E b BT R R
3,092,000/ 7t (20154 : 2,743,000/ 7T ) {fE AN E
(AP BEEMBFE R &gt 8 RIRRTEIMEE
ETYE BERERE: OFEINE R (C)BEEH
BE#E 2 Mahe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. E=REEMEER

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

(a) EEME

RIRBE B R AHED (£622F ) ({§&HI) 38315 &
AR (HBEFEM=EER) RO (F6226E) (R
P EENESHMe T

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap.

622G) (the Regulation) are as follows:

2016 20164
HA Kam NG CHOw
On, YEN GONG Kwok Wing Kin, William ZHANG CHEN LAN
Victor Gordon Thengyi Tung Anthony LAM Chong ~ Minghong i Jiang Total
2% BRs% BiER HER Ak KER "B CLF: 318 #e
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Tz FE7 FA7 FA7 FA7 FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT AT
(note ) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note )
Fees we 221 200 - - 250 100 129 - - 200 129 1,229
Other emoluments Efbie
Salaries and other benefits %% RE 87 - - 870 3,304 - - - - - - - 4174
Discretionary bonuses* HiEgs - - - 1,525 - - - - - - - 1,525
Fquity-setfled share-based ~ DUEREE LR (G
payments BEE 2R - 51 - - - - - - - - - 51
Refirement benefits scheme & {R gl 813
contribution 9 - 9 18 - - - - - - - 36
230 251 879 4,847 250 100 129 - - 200 129 7,015
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10. EEREEMEEH (H)

() EFME (&)

2015 20154
CHOW
HA Kam YEN GONG IHAO NG Kwok Wing Kin, YANG IHANG CHEN YING
LI Lan On, Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony Shibin Chong Minghong Wei Total
Y 8% BEH Bt HiE B Ak AthE i R &R i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT FET FET
(note ) (note vi) (note vii) (note ix)
(Hiitv) (#ritvii) (Hrtviii) (Hitix)
Fees we - 250 200 150 - 250 200 - - - 200 1,250
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits & REAEF 180 - - 48 3304 - - - - - - 3972
Discretionary bonuses* MR - 100 - 100 1,017 - - - = = = 1217
Fquitysetlied share-based ~ MEREE MK
payments BEE 3 - 43 145 - - - - - - = = 578
Retirement benefis TR
scheme contribution - 12 - 2 18 - - - - - - 2
180 7% 345 740 4339 250 200 - - - 200 7,049
& The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group. o BIE R AR EENANERE R L
Notes: HiaE -
(i)  Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor resigned as Executive Director on 19 May 2016. (i) ERTEER2016F58190BBTHITES -
(i) Mr. Gong Zhengyi retired as Executive Director on 24 June 2016. (ii) fERE SE £ R2016F6 24 B REATTE S ©
(i)~ Mr. Chow Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP retired as Independent Non-Executive Director (i) AXfEiE  REAEE L FHLM201656 248
on 24 June 2016. REBUIFNITESE
(iv)  Mr. William Lam was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 9 May  (iv) #{EK5E £ R20165F5 AR EZ T BB IEHITE
2016. o
(v)  Mr. Lan Jiang was appointed as Executive Director on 9 May 2016. (v)  EETEAN2016F5 A0 EZRTANITES
(vi)  Madam Li Lan retired as Executive Director on 23 January 2015. (vi) ZFBWZETR2015F1823BRERITES -
(vii)  Mr. Yang Shibin resigned as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 January 2015. (vii) HGHBERER2015F1AIBBTB Y IERITES -
(viii)  Mr. Chen Minghong was appointed as Executive Director on 23 January 2015. (viii) PRIEHEEENR2015F1A23HEZERATES -

(ix)  Mr. Ying Wei was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 January (ix)

2015.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND 10. EEREEMSER (&)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) EEM=

The five highest paid employees included one (31 December 2015: one) H&eii& /5% EE BIE1IML (20155 12H31H : 1
director, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of i) E % - HEN & BN Ll M (a) « #2 4L

the remaining four (31 December 2015: four) employees are as follows: (20155128318 :4f) EEWBS T ¢

2016 2015
HK$'000 %75 HK$'000 % 7T

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 8,113 13,763
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINEFIFT IR 168 200
Discretionary bonuses WigtE 3,339 2,726

11,620 16,689
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2N F A TR

2016 2015

HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$7,500,000 to HK$8,000,000

1,500,000/ 7T £2,000,0007 7T
2,500,001% 7t 23,000,0007% 7
3,000,0017% 7 £3,500,0007% 7
3,500,001 7 £4,000,0007% 7T
7,500,0007% 7t 28,000,0007% 7

—_— = e
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were

within the following bands:

10. EEREEMEEHN (F)

c) e EEEMNE
ENSHENEREEERKE ZME M TUATH

Al

2016 2015

Below HK$1,000,000 411,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 7T £5,000,0007% 7T

11. DIVIDENDS

11. R R

2016 2015
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/87T

Dividend recognised as distribution EFEERRADEK LIRS
during the year:

2015 final dividend of HK4.0 cents 20155 RHB S & k4.078 1l
(2014 final dividend of HK4.0 cents) per share (20145 RERRR B : 4.0/l

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both years.

The final dividend of HK5.3 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: HK4.0 cents) per share, amounting to approximately
HK$63,866,000 (2015: HK$48,201,000) in total, has been recommended
by the directors of the Company and is subject to the approval of the

shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REaMBBRME
31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512A31H
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. 8RER
The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share A TG AFE(EERERZFN R#ERTN IR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data: B3 EIRETE

2016 2015
HK$'000 F% 75 HK$000 % 7T

Earnings &7
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Rt EERERAF R
Company for the purposes of basic BBRAFMAZARAES AER
earnings and diluted earnings per share =EEEF 127,903 99,860
2016 2015
Number of shares gt !

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HAEERERENEEZRTFMA
purposes of basic earnings and diluted earnings per LTRBmMETHSE
share 1,205,026,960 1,204,050,522

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 HRBHEEBSERFE335R [FREMN ] E 2

December 2016 and 31 December 2015 does not assume the exercise of — ZAA &I ARITEBERHE 2 LABRTEBSARNH

the Company’s outstanding share options because the adjusted exercise  FR{EFE 2 FHMHE - Bt EEH £2016F12

prices of those options calculated in accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings  A31H K2015412 311 I8 2 SR 52T
B amass i

Per Share” are higher than the average market price of the shares for both ~ FFIF #ERR A S EIED EIT(E

years.
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31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12A31H
13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. 8 EME

HK$'000 F&T
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 57,586
Currency realignment NS I T o KR (1,975)
Reclassification from buildings 3R 22 T 25,325
At 31 December 2015 2015412 A31H 80,936
Currency realignment HNEE I o KR (3,986)
Reclassification from buildings e 2 2L 8 4% 280
At 31 December 2016 201612 A31H 77,230
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 2,492
Currency realignment SNEE I T = KE (156)
Provided for the year = FERE 4,049
At 31 December 2015 7201512 A31H 6,385
Currency realignment HSNEE I o KR (461)
Provided for the year = FERE 3,896
At 31 December 2016 2016412 H31H 9,820
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2016 #2016 12831 H 67,410
At 31 December 2015 R2015%12A31H 74,551
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group'’s investment properties consisted of leased properties and leased
pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2016 was HK$189,436,000 (31 December 2015: HK$193,965,000). The
fair value of leased properties was HK$166,574,000 (31 December 2015:
HK169,184,000) and the fair value of leased pier was HK$22,862,000 (31
December 2015: HK$24,781,000) which have been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent property
valuer. (31 December 2015: Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited and

RHL Appraisal Limited respectively, both are independent property valuers.)

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison
method (31 December 2015: Direct comparison method and Depreciated
Replacement Cost approach). The change of valuation technique resulted
in a measurement that is equally or more representative of fair value in the

circumstances.

Direct comparison method is adopted based on the principle of substitution,
where comparison is made based on prices realised on actual sales and/
or asking prices of comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar
size, scale, nature, character and location are analysed and carefully
weighed against all the respective advantages and disadvantages of each

property in order to arrive at a fair comparison of market value.

Depreciated Replacement Cost approach requires an estimate of the new
replacement costs of the buildings and structures of the property from
which deductions are then made to allow for age, conditions, functional

obsolescence, etc.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement
Cost approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for
the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the
improvements less allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimisation. The key input of Depreciated
Replacement Cost approach is the building construction cost per square
metre. A significant increase/decrease in building construction cost per
metre used would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of

the leased pier.

=& M3 8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

13. R&W* (&)

AEBENBREVEOEHRENEREER
o AREBEIEEYENR20165F12A31H A
¥ EE /189,436,000 7T (201512 A31
H:193,965,0008 T) - HEMEN A FE
8 A166,574,000% 7T (20154 12A31H :
169,184,000 ) R EBEN R FEE A
22,862,0007% Jt (2015412 A31H : 24,781,000
L) ERBN Y EGEMKAITIERERS
RN FBEITHEEES L - (201565124311 ¢
NAFEHANERD R RXFTIEBERARA
Bl HEH AB I EGERM-)

HEMENEETDREZLBUL (201512431
B EHRUBERFEEERANR)EE - HED
ENEBEH A FEBZFERTRERLTHR
HELEARKM -

BRLEVETIRBERRRAERA - UL - LT
RERHEERRZEBRR R AIHREEYEZR
EFEH R/ BEHE BRI BHEEZA
HEBMETHRBEMEZ BRNEETOIT K
HFAGE NERAFHELR-

FEEENRERREFMEET REBY 23
EERA WREPRER R RN BESIE
R

HMEBENGEDNRTEEERANEEE %
ETRB LR EREHMEEL G L
BRREEEMNRAREELGRRERBRAMEN
A ANRERBLAE - HESERNSENET
RRABBREFIRNBERE - BFT7 KN
BRERAKRE LA/ TREEBHEBRZAT
BEKE LTk
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics of
the investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor
level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit
market price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit market
price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in a

significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased properties.
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’

highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of 2% to 4.5% or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for

capital appreciation.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Freehold and

Furniture,

=& M3 8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

14. Y% - HeERRE

leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
AABER G- RE
HENLH BEN RRE BERKS EH EEIR #E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1R1H 21,550 970,304 792,156 2,220,787 24,493 22,133 4,051,423
Currency realignment INEBME EE () (2,128) (1,652) (1,226) (142) (396) (5,546)
Additions =0 - 969 30,299 70,412 1,179 14,952 117,811
Reclassifications to: FEECEE
— investment properties  —REME - (27,634) - - - = (27,634)
- others —HAh - 225 12,331 8,052 = (20,608) =
Disposals/written-off HE,/FEdH - - (25,458) (49,374) (1,476) - (76,308)
At31 December 2015 120155 12A318 21548 941736 807,676 2,248,651 24,054 16081 4,059,746
Currency realignment I = 2 (3,998) (5,622) (2,894) (139) (2,155) (14,806)
Additions 0 - 12 10,623 115,536 3,341 126,973 256,485
Reclassifications to: ARZE:
- investment properties  —REME - (408) - - - = (408)
- others —HAh - 39,164 38,162 10,662 = (87,988) =
Disposals/written-off HE - = (29,015) (41,643) (3,155) (9,030) (82,843)
At31 December 2016 R2016%12831 R 21550 976506 821,824 2330312 24,101 43881 4218174
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31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

14. Y15 - #es Rk fe ()

Freehold and Furniture,
leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
land Buildings  equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KAKER B %E
HERN L BEY kR BERES BEH  HERIRE fE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET THET FHET FHET FHET
Depreciation and impairment T E R AE
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H 12,230 327,772 605,163 1,566,628 19,456 - 2,531,249
Currency realignment S E =5 - (622) (1,149) (821) (115) - (2,707)
Provided for the year REERE 215 40,074 31,49 116,299 2,045 - 190,128
Eliminated on reclassification o~ F3#E 1% Z W K 8
investment properties - (2,309) - - - - (2,309)
Eliminated on disposalsfwritten-off Hi% /¥ % #l 3 - = (23,139) (44,282) (1,314) - (68,735)
At 31 December 2015 72015%12A317 12,445 364,915 612,370 1,637,824 20,072 - 2,647,626
Currency realignment INERE =T - (1,319) (2,031) (1,263) (92) - (4,705)
Provided for the year eEFERE 215 40,144 27457 105,254 1,686 - 174,756
Eliminated on reclassification to ~ ## Z {% & 13 K i 88
investment properties = (128) = = = = (128)
Eliminated on disposals/written-off 1% /7t 5 s #l 58 = - (23,037) (36,702) (2.953) - (62,692)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12/31H 12660 403612 614759 1705113 18713 - 2754857
Carrying values BEE
At 31 December 2016 F2016F12A31H 8,890 572,894 207,005 625,199 5,388 43,881 1,463,317
At 31 December 2015 F2015F12A31H 9,103 576,821 195,306 610,827 3982 16,081 1,412,120

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated,

after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line

basis.
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15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

BEHEE(EE)FRAT 2016FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512A31H

15. AN HEERIE
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12A31H 2015612 A31H
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F&7T

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets

Non-current assets

AEENBENEENRBSE:

AR EBUNITIE L) 101,715 104,626

2R/ S R

REEE 2,600 2,606

FREYEE 99,115 102,020
101,715 104,626
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

l6. HttBEEE
Software

B4
HK$'000 T 7T

Cost 2%

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H
Additions 0

At 31 December 2015 2015 12H31H
Additions 0

At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H
Amortisation 5

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A1H
Provided for the year EFEEEE

At 31 December 2015 M2015%F12A31H
Provided for the year EEEEE

At 31 December 2016 201612 H31H
Carrying values BREE

At 31 December 2016 MR20165F12A31H
At 31 December 2015 MR2015F12A31H
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30,779
488

31,267

31,267

3,188
3,246

6,379
3,271

9,650

21,617

24,888



EEHEE(EE)FREE 20165 FH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512A31H
17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17Z. A—BEHME AT 2R
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12A31H 2015612 A31H
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F&7T

Unlisted shares, at cost I EMRR ARSI 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profit FEE YR B 1 2 7 696 101
16,900 16,305

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2016 and 31  ZAL&EEFE A FR2016512 431 H k2015512 A

December 2015 is as follows: I Z&IBT:
Percentage of
ownership interests/
Form of business Place of Place of operation and voting rights/
Name structure incorporation principal activities profit share
it EERER
RERE
=L EBEBERX =E 18 B 32 T AE 3t EEMERREEER BRBDL
REEKIEBR AR Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
= GE A B R
E 1R 5 7K BRI R

The primary business of B2 fXBE/K# AR A 7 is engaged in construction REMRBKEBRAFTNEIBEBEINERER
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong SemMiE:R K& I )5 K ER IR K o

Province.

-

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the i N R T AR ER R G I B R KR 5 BR o

consolidated financial statements.
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17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 17. A—EBE L T 2R (E)
Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually — fERIZEE & & 7 B & N 7 2 B #5 & R it -
material:
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
M2016F12A31H R2015F12H31H
HK$'000 F/# 7T HK$000 F&
Profit from continuing operations BECEEB BT 595 839
Other comprehensive income HizEKE - -
Total comprehensive income FHENREE 595 839

18. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and

movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as

18.

3IF: FiE B 1R

AEERABEHRREEREARERNER
EERIBEE (BE) REEHNT:

follows:
Accelerated tax

depreciation Tax losses Others Total
RABERE BEER Hfty @aE
HK$000 Fi& 7T HK$'000 F% 7T HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F& 7T

(note)

(Hiiz)
At 1 January 2015 ®K2015F1A1H 12,073 (5,096) (28,894) (21,917)
Charged/(credit) to profit or loss REBEERAING/ (GTA) 1,226 97 (12,918) (11,595)
Currency realignment INE BB (5) - - (5)
At 31 December 2015 R2015412H31H 13,294 (4,999) (41,812) (33,517)
Charged/(credit) to profit or loss RBEERIR/ (GTA) 263 535 (10,326) (9,528)
Currency realignment B E = 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2016 2016F12A31H 13,561 (4,464) (52,138) (43,041)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on
inventories, unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries
and deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on an overseas
subsidiary at the amounts of HK$4,206,000 (31 December 2015: HK$3,927,000),
HK$2,034,000 (31 December 2015: HK$2,431,000) and HK$25,000 (31 December
2015: HK$323,000) respectively.
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ERREIERFENRERANNIME QR ZMH
T2 2 BR 5 8 8 RO R B3R I ES T AR RO IR FE TR IR A
BE - AR — N /2 R0 RR #O TR 40 B AT AR HO
REFIEE & - 5 5l /24,206,000 7T (2015512 A
31H :3,927,000% 7T) * 2,034,000/ 7T (2015512
H318 :2,431,0007% 7T ) }25,000/% 7T (2015412
HA31R :323,000&7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$216 million (31 December 2015: HK$375 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$27 million (31 December 2015: HK$30 million)
of such losses, which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the
Company’s subsidiaries as it is considered by the management that future
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$189 million (31 December 2015: HK$345 million) tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. As at 31 December 2016, of
the above tax losses, an aggregate amount of approximately HK$56 million
(31 December 2015: HK$110 million) can be carried forward for five years
following the year when the losses were incurred. Other tax losses may be

carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2016, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$73 million (31 December 2015:
HK$39 million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and
holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced
rate of 5% will be applied. No deferred tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such loss amounting to HK$40,784,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$44,544,000). Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to
retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$210,494,000
(31 December 2015: HK$192,870,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

FREMBHREME
31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12831H

18. IEAE IR (&)
2016512 A31 8 - 7<% M 7] FA E K 88 K SR & 7
B 7 28 FA 1 T8 5 B 40 £216,000,0007 7T (20154
12 A31H : 375,000,000/ Jt.) ° if it 38 &5 18 R 49
27,000,000 Jt (2015412 A31H : 30,000,000
BT ERR A HELHIERE  WIHAREE
THEBARMEENMIBES KEREEZRERRD
R 2R B AR B &R A 5 AT 4K SH ML B IE R o 82 TR Y
R4 18 &518 4 189,000,000/ 7t (2015412 A31A :
345,000,000/ 7T ) P& 7 e T8I 4% 2K 19 22 1| 3O)R i
NEWRF/BELEN AR E - N20165F12H31H -
EiFi AR - 485 F4956,000,0007% 7T (2015
124318 : 110,000,000 7T ) 7] A E £ B R4
[E & 1755 o H i B 18 &5 18 7] At £ R Histh 8877 o

BESh - 7201612 A31 8 AEBE AT R E
BF 2 £ 49 473,000,000 7T (201512 A31A -
39,000,000/87T) * EEBEME ARz Eias &
BEFABORBRNE FEORBERT - RE
REERERFBE R - E R EBRT
BFEAERSEL T INRERZER ARG HER
ZAHRERERABREHIBEEE-

RIRDERBHA H2008F1A1ARE  RAH
B SZ 8) 2~ B [ 3R A& & 3 Ik 3 B RN 200878 F K
LAf& FE R BT A B8 AR B A8 AN 10% T8 40 it
BH -REEEMAZAEFEFEAQARI25%
BENREE BERARRBES% 26 W EHR
= D 4 5t 5% 5 518 B AR 0 IR & 240,784,000
7570 (2015412 A31H : 44,544,000 7T ) 1
o 3 3E B TR B o E PO AR AR B AT DA I R
BERB o HB MERZERAENTRFR
TERBE WIEARTEARBRARIREFERFNZ
B = $210,494,0007% 7T (20155128318 -
192,870,000/ 7T ) L 47 & B IS 3R MVE L IEE R
TER A -
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18. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

For an overseas subsidiary, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
HK$995,000 (31 December 2015: HK$12,677,000). The rate applied is the

domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The

following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

18. JEFERIE (/)
B—MSHHMBLARANS AEEERKDER
#)995,0007% 7t (20156412831 H : 12,677,000/
L) 2 BB E BEHRIRIE BB G - FTAE R 2 Bt
RAZMITFIEBE

RESHBRRAKRNESME & TRERIEABE
ENREBEEE AT ER2 RN S ELTEHIEA
REER DA

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

EREHIEEE
ELHERE

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

In prior period, the Group entered into two contracts with two insurance
companies, which contain seven life insurance policies to insure against
the death of seven key members of management of the Group, with an
aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these contracts, the beneficiary
and policy holder is the Company. The Company has made upfront
payments of HK$36,178,000 in prior period. The monthly insurance costs
and administrative charges determined by the insurance companies will
be deducted from the account value. The insurers will declare interest
(including the guaranteed interest) to the Company on a monthly basis,
based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be determined at their

own discretion.

During the year, the Group terminated a contract which contained five
life insurance policies. A gain on disposal amounting to HK$751,000,
which included a reclassification from other comprehensive income of
HK$3,012,000, has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss for the year.
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R2016%12A31R 72015F12H31H
HK$'000 FE7 HK$000 T/87T
(49,909) (39,721)

6,868 6,204
(43,041) (33,517)

19. A\ERBREZRE

RBTHR AEEERERR ARG ZMEKE
B BERBRETMASRBRRE ARAEE+EFE
ZEREREBZANEERR RRSEARDA
18,800,000 7T (48 % 1L 49145,800,000/ 7T )
BREZEEH SRARREFEAREKAR -
AD R B HAR B s A4 78 14 7 1836,178,0007%
T HFAXMNBNRERREBAREENHTERER
BHREEFEERNR -RBRARE A AREERS
BERARNBREZFMEAARARATREFE (B
ERBFE) o

=
a5

k>
=

RERRE R E W A751,000/8 7T (BIEH
2 E W FA 3,012,000 7T) E R B FELRA
R N

RER AEBRIE—MHENEFEEAN
(

13
o>
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, certain life insurance policies were secured for
bank loans of HK$11,830,000 as detailed in note 29. As at 31 December

2016, no life insurance policies were secured for bank loans.

20. INVENTORIES

=& M3 8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

19. A\SRRREZRE (#)

20156 12A31H - & T ASRBRREIIERR
F7EX11,830,000/8 TR + 15 RHTFE29 o B
20165 12A31H - BIE ASREBREARRITE
R E AR o

Spare parts LEs
Raw materials e
Work-in-progress o
Finished goods Sk

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. 7€
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12831H R2015612H31H
HK$'000 F#7 HK$000 F#7T
44,992 44 370
646,164 603,230
397,563 417,943
313,192 344,787
1,401,911 1,410,330

21. EEREEBRWFIE
At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Trade receivables EEEWIR
Bills receivables ZERMGE
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts i REEE

R2016%12A31H 720156124317
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 FET
941,500 1,061,359

316,860 295,506
(49,030) (43,332)
1,209,330 133528
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its
trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables based on the payment due dates net of allowance for doubtful
debts:

21. EXREEEWRR (&)
AEBRHEN TIOREOREERATHELE
Fo 8 ¥RERBUUERBREINE (L%
REEFE) BRI AT T -

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Not yet due REH
Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K
Overdue 31-60 days #EA31-60K
Overdue >60 days 1 ER R B60K

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are

neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$466,129,000 (31 December
2015: HK$479,489,000) which was past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are
generally not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360
days have been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,

determined by reference to past default experiences.
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R2016%12A31R 72015F12A31H
HK$'000 F% 75 HK$'000 % 7T
743,201 834,044

228,570 285,435

114,875 86,352

122,684 107,702
1,209,330 1,313,533

AEBRZEMNEOHEFA EFERBEBERR
MERERMATHEEERE - EEHER SR
TEERBRENTF -ZEPEERBEEH TN
T 5 o 7N 5 [ BE £ 38 A 7 4R 060 (M) 2 5K B IR
VA RFEEARE

BREAREZXRERBREBUGIAZHANER
BR & HERF{E A466,129,000/8 7T (2015612 A31
B :479,489,00087T) - ERNHEHEL DAY M
REEEXRVESAZHAZESHENEKRLE
BHBBEBELRDRAA FUE - AEE W E
SRR R E R KRB E - AR B W Bl % F &R
FrAEMER -

BHEERYGRBETTANB - AR BEE BB
360KHI P & M UIE 2 BATHR R - 1tk TH
TR A5 38 1 #8 B 780 i1 6B 3B 360K 1Y & 3 JIE Wk IR
— R EEI[E - 60K E360K 2 [H #) & 3 FE i
FIATHRAGFH R R @ S RIS E B ERKER
PEETE MaTHe Rt o
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

=& M3 8 R M

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016612A31H
21 EXREBRWFIR (&)
REBEZEHWT

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

Balance at beginning of the year FNEH

Impairment loss recognised on trade and EERZBRENFEL
bills receivables, net REBLERFE

Amounts written-off as uncollectible Aa R E MM EN S5

Balance at end of the year FREEH

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included
in the allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate balance of
HK$49,030,000 (31 December 2015: HK$43,332,000) was individually
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of HK$115,608,000 (2015:
HK$106,102,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to six
months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised
Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of
the directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the

Derecognised Bills are not significant.

R2016%12A31A R2015F12A31H
HK$'000 F% 75 HK$000 % 7T
43,332 21,386

21,401 25,159
(15,703) (3,213)

49,030 43,332

M20165F12A31H  BREERKBESLERE
49,030,000/ T (2015412 A31 A : 43,332,000
BT)NAEEEERFEREWFECEREE
RERE AERENER LS ERITH EMMER

o
an °

EEHMRIERNCEESREE
M2016F12A31H - ASEEAES THERSZ
TR B At ) SR THE AR RO E T SRR B UGRIE (TR
IEHERZERR]) - AAFREEA #£75115,608,000
78 7T (20154F : 106,102,0007% 7t ) H) R - 3% 55 it
FETE B SE BRI - MRS HARS - IR IERER TR
MERA—2/NEA - REFBESEE A EH
RITEAN AR IEBERAERSEAHAEEFE
RiE([HEL2HR]) -BEFERR A5BEERE
BRI ERER OB RE D R b & B - & it
BEUHIER R LR B RAQR & ¥ &M RIER
2HEEHE ARERFES2EKIBRER R
AREEZER IEREENARGBES REME
BHSABAENEEAE ESRA AEEY
RE2EKIIEREBEHATEBELTEK-
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22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

22. A FIE - RERHEMEKKE

At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12831H R2015%F12H31H
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 Fi& T

Value-added tax recoverable AR EEER
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B BRFIEREMEKE

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2016, restricted bank deposits of HK$10,406,000 (31
December 2015: HK$7,043,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits

placed in a bank in PRC as securities for the bills payables.

24. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 3.3% (31 December 2015: 0.01% to 5.2%) per

annum.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

34,518 19,589
101,902 97,176
136,420 116,765

23. ZRFBITER

2016512 431 H » % BR il R 17 77 5£10,406,000
78 7T (2015512 A31H : 7,043,000 7t ) = B 35
FRRRE-RRITEARBEAFBERNE
ERER-

24. EHBRITERRBITERERE

RHIRITTERRBITERTIIEN T0.01%E3.3%
(2015412 A318 : 0.01%&E5.2% ) 2 T35 FE Fl| &

e

25. EXREBRNRIER
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12A31R R2015F12A31H
HK$'000 F# 7T HK$000 &

Trade payables EERMTHE
Bills payables ZRE R
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516,861 561,234
235,279 290,243
752,140 851,477
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the payment

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016£12A31H
25. EXREBRNIRIER (&)
EERMNRIERN R B ENRROTAT :

due dates:
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12H31H R2015F12H31H
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 F& 7T
Not yet due A 55 431,767 490,001
Overdue 1-30 days #H1-30K 57,492 48131
Overdue 31-60 days #H31-60K 10,661 8,473
Overdue >60 days 0 ER R B60K 16,941 14,629
516,861 561,234

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the

reporting period.

As at 31 December 2016, bills payables of HK$18,920,000 (31 December
2015: HK$22,682,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank
deposits of HK$5,676,000 (31 December 2015: HK$7,043,000).

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure

that payables are within the credit time frame.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

R|EHRR REB 2 EREERNKIALDRE

R2016%12A31 A - Z 5 fE {+ 2 818,920,000
7 7t (2015412 A31H : 22,682,000/ 7T ) T3 M
7N & B A& $1(5,676,0007% 7T (2015612 A31H :
7,043,000 7T ) 2 X IR HIl R17 17 RIE R AE R

BENFHEEHR/IOREI20R - AEEE R
MR EERE  AERENRBESEREES
HRA-

26. HittENRAREHEA

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

HA B 508
fEst &M

Other payables

Accruals

R2016512A31R M2015F12 4314
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/87T
133,375 120,490

189,470 223,009

322,845 343,499
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27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days

credit period.

28. DEFERRED INCOME

27. RFERBR— BB E D RRE

(a) RIEFZERPEER FIA
ERRELERT RENEENREE-

(b) R—TEIHE & R RIFIA

BERARAREERR RS RANOXBEEEH
REE

28. IEAE W A
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016F12A31H R2015412431H
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 Fi# T

Arising from government grants (note) AT FTEE (f1i2)
Current Yok
Non-current i)

Note: In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the
purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over the
useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfillment of the relevant conditions. The

Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.
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61,962 62,218

1,592 1,458
60,370 60,760
61,962 62,218

BraE . TR2008%F - AEKE D W —IAK AT #BA72,912,0008
T RARBEETEE #AERERBRRER
REMAEEBFPRERRRA -AREIL EZE
T 428 ik P PR 5 1O 2R S22 K fER £
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31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. RITREMEE

At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
M2016F12A31H R2015F12A31H
HK$'000 T#7 HK$000 F/& T
Secured borrowings: BEAEE:
Bank loans (note (a)) RITER (Hit(@) - 11,830
Unsecured borrowings: EHHEE:
Bank loans RITER 358,010 525,123
Import bills loans EOEX 309,634 116,891
667,644 653,844
Repayable as follows: BRTIHRESR:
On demand or within one year (note (b)) EEREELIEA (M (0b) 488,191 494,619
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 1N EBRBR2E 39,461 159,225
More than two years, but not exceeding five years 2E P\ B RRIBLF 139,992 -
667,644 653,844
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or due within A EEREERIFATHEE
one year shown under current liabilities #EARHAEER
— bank borrowings due within one year —1ERZBMRTEER (488,191) (494,619)
Amounts due after one year 15REHeE 179,453 159,225

Notes:

Byt

(a) Asat 31 December 2015, bank loans of HK$11,830,000 were secured by certain life (a)
insurance policies as detailed in note 19.

2015128318 + R17H 3K11,830,000/% 7T 13 A
TASRBRREERER  FHEFNMEL.

(b) As at 31 December 2016, the current liabilities include bank loans that are all (b)
scheduled to repay within one year. As at 31 December 2015, the current liabilities
include bank loans of HK$11,830,000 that are not scheduled to repay within one
year. They are classified as current liabilities as the related loan agreements contain a

R2016F12A31H  REIBEBEAN —FREIHE
BZRITER-R2015F12A31H BB BERET
BN —FREIHEEZRTEL830,000# T A
RIBAERBARE G FTRERAG EEEER
AR REERER  REBRTERELBRARD

any time at its own discretion. =00

clause that provides the lenders with an unconditional right to demand repayment at
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 0.9% to 2.8%
(31 December 2015: 1% to 2.8%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus
a spread, ranging from 0.9% to 1.75% (31 December 2015: 1.3% to 2%)
per annum in Hong Kong. The average effective interest rates of the bank
borrowings of the Group is 2.49% (31 December 2015: 2.45%) per annum.
Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry interest at fixed-rates
ranging from 1.02% to 1.57% (31 December 2015: 1.02% to 2.7%) per

annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios and general undertakings including
the limit of annual capital expenditure (the “CAPEX”). As at 31 December
2016, the bank borrowing with principal amount of HK$280,000,000 which
carries interest at HIBOR plus 2.6% per annum (the “term loan”) exceeded
the CAPEX limit of general undertakings. This bank borrowing is repayable
in seven equal installments at the date which falls 18 months, 21 months,
24 months, 27 months, 30 months, 33 months and 36 months from 22
December 2014. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the term
loan is HK$159,225,000. According to the term of general undertakings,
the lenders have the right to demand accelerated repayment. The Group
obtained a waiver letter on 13 January 2017 in relation to the term loan
and the lenders have agreed not to demand payment as a consequence of
such excess of the CAPEX limit of the general undertakings. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group had complied with all covenant ratios

and general undertakings.

29. RITRHMEE (&)
AEENBRIEBEEFZARZEEE REBD
REBRITEERFEN EEZEN F09%E2.8%
(2015512 A318 : 1%E2.8% ) sk fa B R 1T R 2
H B EBZENTF09%E1.75% (2015512 A31
B:13%%2%) 2 FMEFE -AEBRITHEE
ZFHEBREF R B249% (2015F12A318
2.45% ) - REBI D HAIRITHEE TR E T F 7
9 F1.02%2E1.57% (2015512 H31H - 1.02%
FE2.7%)FTBe

RIBAREEHRITRLE i - A B A # S B EH
W —REE BEFEERRZRE ([F
EAANBEEZRE]) - R2016F12A318 K"& A
280,000,0007%8 7T LA & A R 1T R % 47 2. 00 £2.6%
FRRTBMRITHEE ([EHAER]) B H—
HEHFEE AR R ZIRITIEEMN20144F12
A22B%/E18EA - 211@ A - 24@ A - 27{@ A -
30 A ~331E A K36EAE B S REFEE R
20164%F12A31 A - & BB HAREE £159,225,000
BT o IRIB— AR BERABRERIRAE
FoR2017F1A13R  AEE R ESEREHE
ROBEE BEFACRETSREBL — K&
HOFEEAFR IR EREN - REFE2015
FI2A3IBIEFEN  AEEEETHAZLLL
TR — MG o

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A

At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015

R2016F12A31H M2015F12A31H
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$000

RO#E FET K2 A TET

Ordinary shares, issued TER BETK
and fully paid: BERAK:

At beginning of the year REFERRE 1,205,026,960 865,716 1,203,046,960 862,211
Exercise of share options id- e - - 1,980,000 3,505
At the end of the year REEELRER 1,205,026,960 865,716 1,205,026,960 865,716
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31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2015: 60%) owned subsidiary of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The NCI of all other

subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be

immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka

(Private) Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

31. FEERES

RN A A — KB A FlOcean Lanka (Private)

Limited * # H60% (20154
ZRR R ([FEZERER])
100%# %5 2 Fit 75 H b T B
B RERK o

MEBE AR 8 2 7T B RE

160% ) kiR E K JE
WIRALEES
NAZIEERERR

Ocean Lanka (Private)

Limited JFE R B B ER 2520 -

For the year ended 31 December

Revenue
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income

Profit allocated to NCI

For the year ended 31 December

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on

cash and cash equivalents

Net cash (outflows)/inflows

HZ12A31BLFE

BE12A31ALFE

EEEAMGHHESRE
REBBMBANRAERE
REBRBMANAERE
EXZFHURL R
SRATRENTE

Be (i) RAFE

2016 2015
HK$'000 F %75 HK$000 % 7T
721,900 768,991
49,308 70,489
49,064 70,765
19,723 28,196
59,584 92,194
(16,718) (5,494)
(46,638) (6,824)
71 (31)
(3,701) 79,845
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31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

31 FERER (&)

At 31 December 2016

As at 31 December RW12A31H
Current assets REEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities ERBER

Net assets BEFE
Accumulated non-controlling interests R

146

At 31 December 2015

R2016%12A31R 2015612 A31H
HK$'000 F% 75 HK$'000 % 7T
353,409 357,414

158,105 159,482

(76,504) (85,418)

(8,674) (8,055)

426,336 423,423

170,534 169,369
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which was
adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held on 25
January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012. The
primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible mean of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such other purposes
as the board of directors of the Company may approve from time to time.
Under the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to
full time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share options
granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the 2002 Scheme.
The Company may seek approval from shareholders of the Company in
general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition, the maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% (or such higher
percentage as may be allowed under the Listing Rules) of the total number
of shares in issue from time to time. The number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any employee in any 12-month period is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, subject to approval from shareholders of the Company. Options
granted must be taken within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or
shorter period as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (“Holdup period”). An
option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Holdup period and expire
no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company and will be at least the

highest of the followings:

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12831H
2. URMDARERZARR S
20024 5t &l
AARGEAE—BBRETE ([2002F:181) - 75
BN A R R200261 A25 0 17 2 MR RIAE
EER#N 0 20024 51 & B 7201241 A 24 H J& i ©
2002 EIMF EB M ABRAARIAIMEES T
ERED - SR E B HERTIREEN REAA
AIESEFTRENEMB O S RHE— AR
7 R o R R20024F 51 & - AR R E F & 722002
FEMBERBETFARARK SEMBEARC A
BAANNZBES (REXBNTES) BRE
UREBADARND  SREZBRIENKREBARLE
T © 1R R 20024 51 &I A7 15 1 ) B AR 428 10 24T O AR
MY RZTBIBB2002F BRI 2 E L
HEBEBEITROAEAIL0% - A A E A ERR
ANE ESSKIRRHAE - EHUL10%H) LR o o) -
IR IE20024F 51 & K AN 1 B fa] H h B AR AT &I B2
BB AR TT R B BB AR AR T R T B AT RO RR 1D 48
2 BETEBBAQTNTEERITRGEHDN
30% (SRR FARBTHHNERS LR) -BREE
RATRRERESN ARG E B PAE R 1218 A A
MR ERTESERBREORNESE 52T
BHBBAREEBEITROBEH1% - B 8 K/AE
BRER A B28A RN ARRIESEAERA
HEMEMBRRIBEAMNEMMER THE
B BENESLRELARNIFRAQAE
ZEAERABENEMBME ([FE8]) 558
MR - A AIEL R - REHEA AR EF SR
BEMBERET SHFEHERERBHER
TEREEBAIOAFER -1TEEHAARE
EeHT EXEAUTIETHNRSE:

(/

=

i3
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

(a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(c) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17
September 2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$1.29. Details of the movements of those

options and other information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the same date. Further details are set out in the announcement of the

Company dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover only
directors and full-time employees. In addition, there is no specific period
for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup period,
which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of share

options as they think as appropriate.
The 2011 Scheme will expire on 20 January 2021.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant were

HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively.
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2. URGBB/BER2ARRIE (F)

20024 5+ & (48)
() PRIDIBEAESE ) B BB R0 Y T {8

(b) BORBEEFRLABZASEEEXRANFY
Wi fE: &

() BOWEREE-

R 1R2002F 5t &) B R201069A170 &
22,400,00007 BE ik #E - AR BRI M EE KL R
BRI 2 WM ERL29E T - Al Z S EAREE S
FHIERE L H &R IR T X e

2011472l
201141 A20H + 2002F 5T BB WHERIARLE - T
ARRERENRFEBRITZRERRAS BB
Z—IERFREMN—IBHERAE S (201165t
2]) - E—HHBENA AT A B A2010512A
0)= /N

20114 5+ B 2 165K B fek 1 78 £ 8220024 51 8148
Rl 20115 B2 A ER2EERE (KT E
B)EZEREBIRBES  M20025826E
R2REEBREZLE2RIES - 1o HiERE
FENBRERIBECEEZEMD RO BRE
FEHR TESEREAH (WRERBER) °

20114E st 214202141 208 f&@ i ©

RIE201 1451 8] - A2011455 A 18H K% 201148 5
18H B % 5ll#% 3,352,0001% }23,045,00017 & %
o ARRAIRG N EER L A H 2 W ES B
1.80B T R1.21/E T
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 32.URMAERZARRS (&)
(Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options — F&RIFFE AR GRIE2002F 512 %2011 F 512

granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme. REBEREZZHER-
Outstanding at Forfeited Outstanding at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant price 2016 the year 2016
R20164% R20164F
1A1H 12A31H
8 REBEH TREE fe AR AT FAERNK tef AR AT 2
Directors
-
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) -
ERTRE 20024 201049A17H 1.29% 7T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 (3,300,000) =
20119F 201148H18H 12187
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 1,320,000 - 1,320,000
BEHEL 20119F 201148H18H 12187
Total & #% 9,220,000 (7,900,000) 1,320,000

Exercisable at the end of
the year
RRFEREERR Tk 6,060,000 1,320,000
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

2. URGBB/BER2ARRIE (F)

(Continued)
Outstanding at Forfeited Expired Exercised Outstanding at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant price 2015 the year the year the year 2015
R2015% R20155
1R1H 12A31H
itEl REAM T E HATE  FRERK  FABER  FREAE 4 RATEE
Category 1: Directors
£ 23
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 - - - 4,600,000
BRZAE 20026 201049A17H 1.29% 7
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 - - - 3,300,000
2011F  201148A18H 12187
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 = - (1,980,000) 1,320,000
BEHABL 20116 201148H18H 1217
Total Directors EZ & £ 11,200,000 - - (1,980,000) 9,220,000
Category 2: Employees 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) = = =
F2HER 20026 201049A17H 1.29% 7
2011 18 May 2011 HK$1.91 2,086,000 (244,000)  (1,842,000) = =
2011 201145R18H L91A T
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 6,300,000 (5,300,000)  (1,500,000) = =
2011F  201148A18H 1.21% 7T
Total employees (E & & 1t 13,486,000  (10,144,000)  (3,342,000) = =
Two categories R 5 & 2 24,686,000  (10,144,000)  (3,342,0000  (1,980,000) 9,220,000
Exercisable at the end of the year
REFERERT TI7(E
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in

three tranches, being

e 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three

tranches, being

o 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options

granted are exercisable)

° 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

=]
31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12A31H

2. URBB/ER2ARRIE (F)

20109 A 17 B 1B 120024 51 4% H 2 BB % #E
Al A20143 8178 £20179F3H17H B 5 31&
P& B 7 LAFTE - BD

201443 A178 £20175€3A178 (% %14
2 1% B AR 4 2 30.00% ] T 1T71£ )

201543178 £20175€63A178 (% %14
2 1% BB AL A 2 60.00% ] T 1T71E)

201643178 &201763A17B (FAE B
B Z BAER T176)

MN201145 A 18 B #E201 151 213  ~ B ik e
AI 2012465 A 18F 2201545 A 17 H B 531&
B ER T AT - B

2012454188 2015658178 (& %14
R B E 232.52%0] F171E)

201345 A 188 2015658178 (& %14
B H B 265.04%0] T171E)

2014458 18A 201555170 (FiA E
B 2 BBRRAE AT TATE)
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are

exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to 20.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to 40.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to 80.00% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from 19
August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

° 19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

° 19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)
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2. URGBB/BER2ARRIE (F)

R2011F8 A18H B E201 16 51 4% H 2 B % 4
Al D 2ft T LATTfE - AT

14k : 15,900,00017 f# % #E 7] 72201248 A 19H
220178 18H HAE 5@ EL F AT (E » B

201248 A19R £201748A18H (& % 1h
B BB B 2 20.00% 7] T 1T )

* 201348A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1k
B BB B 2 40.00% 7 T 1T 8)

e 2014%8A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1k
B BB B 2 60.00% 7 T 1T )

e 2015%8A19H £201748A18R (& Z 1k
B % B8 A2 2. 80.00% 7 T 1T )

* 2016%8A19H E201748A18H (FAE
B 2 BRHER] T1T(E)

F2#k 1 7,145,00013 BE AR #ER] FA2012F8 198 &
201548 A 18 H HifE o 3{E P B F LATT {5 B

e 201248A19H F£2015%8H18R (& %14
2B 234.15% 7] F171E)

e 2013%48A19H £2015%8A18R (&K Z 1k
B BEE 26831%F T1T#)
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

EEHEE(EE)FREE 20165 FH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32. IR RER M

Under the
2002 Scheme

Share options

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 20164 12H31H

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

mRZ (&)

BREZAFEENDRAB ZEAEAEE:

Under the
2011 Scheme

Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 18 May 18 August

2010 2011 2011

RIE2002F 5+ &l BI#E20115F 52 RIE2011F 518

720109817 H 720114658 18H 7A201168H18H

EEHNERE 1% YRR R A ERHNERE

Number of options BREZE 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value BEHBHZ ATEE HK$15,812,000/8 7T  HK$2,718,000/6 7t  HK$13,156,0005 7T
Grant date share price B BHZRE HK$1.29/& T HK$1.807%% 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$1.2978 T HK$1.91/8 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor REITEEZ 2 2 2
Contractual life & 494 B 6.5 years 4 years 4-6 years 4
Expected volatility S 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield & 8 = 0% 0.58% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate 2 e B 1) 2 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%

153



Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016412H31H
32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the
stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The risk-
free interest rates used in the model were determined based on the yield of
Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17 September
2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the share options
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

The Group recognised a net reversal of HK$292,000 (31 December 2015:
HK$546,000) for the current year in relation to share options granted by the
Company. Out of the amount, total expense of HK$51,000 (31 December
2015: HK$578,000) is current year incurred that related to the directors of
the Company.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 0.6 years (31 December 2015: 1.4 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an

option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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33. RESERVES 33. #fE
The Company P/N/NE]
Investment Share
revaluation options Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
REEMHRE BRERRE REEA #E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 201561 H1H - 14,846 1,264,618 1,279,464
Transfer Bk 1,805 (5,716) 3911 =
Profit for the year e FEAF - - 113,302 113,302
Net gain arising on revaluation ~ FREHAJEHE
of available-for-sale financial TREEEEZ
assets during the year W FE 426 - - 426
Dividend recognised as ERRBEDIEZRE
distribution = = (48,201) (48,201)
Exercise of share options 1718 B A - (1,109) - (1,109)
Equity-settled share-based VAR & 45 B AR (9
payments reverse RER 2 R - (546) - (546)
At 31 December 2015 72015412331 H 2,231 7,475 1,333,630 1,343,336
Transfer o - (6,352) 6,352 =
Profit for the year eFERF - = 46,290 46,290
Net gain arising on revaluation A E LA H &
of available-for-sale financial SREEEEY
assets during the year W FE 1,410 = = 1,410
Release upon disposal of BEEAHEE
available-for-sale SREEREN
financial assets (3,012) - - (3,012)
Dividend recognised as EHRABDIRIRE
distribution - - (48,201) (48,201)
Equity-settled share-based DA & 5 H AR 0
payments reverse RER 23D - (308) - (308)
At 31 December 2016 R2016612A31H 629 815 1,338,071 1,339,515
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31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12H31H

34. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL  34. R AR 2B B AR R | E
POSITION

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2016

M2016F12A31H R2015F12H31H
Notes Hizt HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 F/% T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment VERY: G 3,264 3,988
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBRREZKE 20,050 38,345
Investments in subsidiaries HBARIRE 20,111 22 265
43,425 64,598
Current assets hBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T 7RI 84 K E A FE U F0IB 2,163 1,960
Amounts due from subsidiaries B8R FTRHIE 2,984,541 3,001,294
Tax recoverable A ERIE 256 256
Bank balances and cash BITEBRRERS 48,912 42,586
3,035,872 3,046,096
Current liabilities nEEE
Other payables and accruals HttERFRERETER 7,811 8,465
Amounts due to subsidiaries RETBRRIZIE 866,255 881,347
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE
— due within one year ——FREH - 11,830
874,066 901,642
Net current assets TEBEEFE 2,161,806 2,144,454
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBDAE 2,205,231 2,209,052
Net assets BEFE 2,205,231 2,209,052
Capital and reserves BEARRE
Share capital A 30 865,716 865,716
Other reserves Hib s 33 1,339,515 1,343,336
Total equity BRAE 2,205,231 2,209,052
ZHAO Yao LAN Jiang
Director Director
2 EBZE
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2016 and 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Place/country of

incorporation/

registration and

Issued and fully

paid share capital/

EEHEE(EE)FREE 20165 FH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 20166128318
35. HEARRE
720164124310 K20154€12A31 A A A Al %
ZMBARINFFIBEMNT

Proportion of issued share

capital/registered capital

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FMAL/
BRREX BORBENRE/ KAAMBERTRE/
WEARERE Fiesh/ AR BRRA BERAMLE TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE B
% %
REBRREERAE (notea) (Hizta) The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of garments
i 14,000,000%7¢ HEREEMK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 9 Knitting, dyeing, printing and
Textiles Printing & Dyeing sales of dyed fabrics
Co., Ltd. (note b)
RepBBESHBNAERAR (Hito) HE 307,500,000% 7T A RE HENEEER
Folktune Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEERAT Bk 28T REER
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
REEXFERAT BiE 3,000,000/ 7 BNREYES
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
ERARAT BE 3,000,000/ 7 YRS
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration and paid share capital/

35. (B A RRE (&)

Proportion of issued share

capital/registered capital

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
FMAL/
BLREX BRTRAZHRE/ KAAMBERTRE/
WEAR AR FiiEst/BR BERE BRREHL R TEEH
Directly Indirectly
¢4 B
% %
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBARRNA BE 2B KKESH
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
(note a) dyed fabrics and yarns
IRRESBERAR (Hia) HE 110,000,000 70 it FENEEemREY
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holdings
EBERERAR BE 28T REER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. The PRC USD26,000,000 - 5.5 Production and sales of garments
(note &)
ERERRKERAR (Miia) i 26,000,000 7T S RHENK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee - 60  Knitting, dyeing, printing and
Republic of (“LKR") 985,000,000 sales of dyed fabrics
Sri Lanka
HEHR 985,000,004 EH £ iR E NENEEEM
REitess Bt ([Ek])
HAE
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBERERAR BE BT KKEH
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 5. MEARRE (&)

Place/country of

incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share

registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
&L/
BLREX BRITRAZHRE/ KRAMBERTRE/
WEAR AR FiiEst/Bx BRRA BRRAML R TEEK
Directly Indirectly
¢4 %
% %
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BELYBERAT BE BT REER
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs
Limited and chemicals
BEiE CRFBEFEERB)ERAH A 100,0008 By REHES
LRRESHBESERAR (note a) (Hita) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
i AR #5,000,0007C BHES
FNBHGBREBR AT (note a) (Hizta) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
i AR #35,000,0007 EHES
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. The PRC USD800,000 - 555 Production and sales of garments
(note a)
BREMRKERAR (Hia) HE 800,000% T BUE RIHEMK
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 5.5 Trading of garments
SEERAH &5 1,000,000/ 70 KKE 5
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

35. (B A RRE (&)

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
&L/
BLREX BRTRAZHRE/ KAAMBERTRE/
i) NG FiEs/BR BRRA BRREHL R TEEK
Directly Indirectly
¢4 %
% %
RERHZMERAER AR The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
(note &) (Hizta) H AR #50,000,00070 Bt
B EESBERDN (tea) (Hfita) The PRC USD60,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of
dyed fabrics and yarns
HE 60,500,000 7T HiE FERNHEEETREY
Notes: Htat:
a.  Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. a.  RPBENUIIEEECEXIHAR -
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC. b. RABINUNEELCENEIERAKIMAR -

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCI% STATEMENTS

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The

Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 29, and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group may balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the

issue of new debts and the redemption of existing debts.

REeEMERRME

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512 H31H
36. ERERERE
AEMEBEARY BH) ERBENEREES
BUARBEEY RSB BMSES R M
SETE  BEHEFNEADR - AEEHES
HER B — B

OlEE

K

=

DlE

&

AEENEARBERREEY (B M2
RENEE) RARBEA ARE#ER (BEEHE
TTRRA R FfE)

ARBPEFRFBEELERTEARE - ERRA
— &0 BEEGERE R E AR A8 B R
BR-REEENER AKEELUEBIRERE
BTHRMBELBRDARBETHEERBERREG
B AFEEEBERRERE-
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

37Z.¢®IT A
(a) T ASER
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015

M2016%12A31H 2015512 A31H
HK$'000 F# 75 HK$000 FET

Financial assets tREE
Available-for-sales financial assets AL E S REE
(investment in life insurance policies) (ANSRBREZEE)
Loans and receivables ERREKTE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERERERBELER)
Financial liabilities tRAE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost SRARREENATE

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include investment in life
insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, restricted
and short term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to an associate, bank and other borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

162

20,050 38,345
2,114,917 2,210,297
1,598,332 1,672,213

(b) BMAF5 R EE R IERER
AEENIEZECRTARRASRRREZR
B EERERERWHOR  H b RUYGIR - RS
MEHSRITER ROTBRERS EEXERERE
FRIA -~ Bt A FRIR - RIFIEBRAR MR - R
—HBE RARNFR  RITREMER - 252/
TAZHBENSEAMEPEE EZFERT
EFMNAREET SRR (B ER KX
®) EERBRERBE SRR TXHIEBN
MEEZSRARNBR - EEBEEEREEZF
B - DA B OR B B A8 RO SR EUE B 15 46 ©
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk
(i) Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
To mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign
currency bank balances by performing regular review. The Group will
continue to assess if the use of the foreign currency hedging strategy as

appropriate in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk.
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are

considered significant by the management are as follows:

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

Assets

BE

At 31 December
2016

R20165F
12A31H
HK$'000

FET
usb e 723,616
RMB AR 392,716
CAD il 21,596
LKR Bt 1,353
HK$ BT 3,684
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") EIEE 1,521

At 31 December

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016412 A31H
37. €@ I A (&)
(b) MIBRAKRERBIZRECR (&)

5%

() E¥ERE

AEBETEREINER S BHAKRE S RINE
N

AEBERREEINER L AR KB K
M ERBUE E 556 - RAFEEINERER - AEREEBRE
Higst LB IMNE 2 IRITAEER - NSRBI AR AR AT
1t R 75 166 P 2 SN 0 0 SR DA BRSNS LR ©

RBERL BEEERRBERNAEBELAIMNE
JIEMEREEREKABMNEKEENT

EREERERARE:

Liabilities
8f&

At 31 December At 31 December

2015 2016 2015

120155 R2016%F 12015F
12A31H 12A31H 12A318
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

TFET TEx TET
966,082 646,545 676,165
452,444 318,396 345,932

6,931 - =

733 645 1,686
1,777 7,654 1,501
1,317 1,226 2,326
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD
and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group

entities.

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease)
in pre-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies strengthen against
the functional currencies of the corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice

versa. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2015.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

37.2RIT A (&)
(b) IERAKREEEZRBER (&)

5 b ()
() EEEE
BRRE DT
REBFEPRET ARE MTkET (EZ

? (4B)

SEREABEEERNINEEE TRE) K
R -
TRAASS RIS SRR EEERERR

FHESKEZ ES%H BURE - BB T B S TNl -
E BT HETERIN 5% BREEZEEABRN
EWINERIEREEEHEXRTESEZSHOT
HFTER A SR E L X - IR E DT E BIE R R
HEDINETEREHEIE R - W FRIRE%HI 5N
PR BN ARG o IR R ZHNE HAERES

B EENEEBFAEN% 2 FERAIAF G S
m/CRd) - RZ IR - BB T T9 1220154 /)
MR EE AT o

EREERERAL

pil iy

At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2016

REEHAMBMEZN (D)

Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year

USD against CAD XM
RMB against HK$ ARER BT
CAD against HK$ TR BT
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R2016F12A31H 2015512 A31H
HK$'000 T HK$000 F/87T

2 1,308

3,990 5,319

1,078 345

5,070 6,972
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the
Group's Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings. In light of low interest
rate expected to be maintained in long period of time, the Group shall
monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate financial

instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate
borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances is
not significant) at 31 December 2016 and 2015. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2015: 50)
basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$3,348,000 (31 December
2015: increase/decrease in pre-tax profit by HK$2,392,000).

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12A831H
37.$@TH (&)

(b) MEEREREBRREEK (&)

w5 mE ()
(i) I/
AEENREREN TR ETRETE
MEERM AEENBRREFERITEER
FEA R URE R FEEN X E g - NEE R
ERENEXAREIZBETNAAKREABTE
MEEELE 2 BBRITEERBIKE - AAMEF
RERERS —BERER AEES R E BN X
KB % HE S Y R TR R E A X b

BREE DT

TIHEESMBEBIETETLR (BIEZEEER
EEESRARBTEBIAEZRRIETEKX)
20164 k201512 A31 AMFIRRAKREE - B
BAOMIDERFEHRMAEENABHEELR
FRERAFEANIRKREENRIMGER -MEE
EIRA B RED 2 HRA = E R TR FA50ME (20156
12A31H : 501@) EE A FHBE - (KRB B =
AR IBEE BTG -

MIECTERITEBEM S - AR EF T ES0ME
B MAAEEMESEFTTE AXEENE
F R AT BRI #1800, Rl 43,348,000/ 7T (2015
F12A31H : B a1 & F 7 42,392,000

JT) °
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the maximum exposure to credit risk
by the Group which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the

recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers
with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group
regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and
individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2016, a net
impairment loss of HK$21,401,000 (31 December 2015: HK$25,159,000)

in respect of the trade and bills receivables was recognised.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable

credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of

counterparties.
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(b) MM EREREBEREEK (&)

= B E fE

M2016%F k201512 A31 8 - A& ERE Y F 1 &
EETEIMERMEELANESEERRAS
BEHBERAEFAZI ERRASHEENRES
B

RERGEERR AEENERECZR—EAS
ﬁﬁéﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ EEER R E MR - A
BARRBRETHHROBHER EREEHE
(EE %Eﬁﬂﬁﬂ*i‘f’fﬁ%&ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁmgﬁo
BEAN - ANER B iE HAHE SR A8 I M Bl EERR AT IE A
BEAER ¢ LME{%EJEH/M&@ KR B S
AR K NE E2016F12A318 IEFER - A
SEEREERERRBFERAREELFE
21,401,000 7t (2015412 A31 H : 25,159,000
BIT) °
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains

a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management

to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in

cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and

ensures compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2016, the available unutilised
banking facilities of the Group are approximately HK$3,037 million (31
December 2015: HK$3,614 million).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest are floating rates, the undiscounted amount

is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Weighted
average Less than
effective 1 month or

interest rate  on demand

=]

31 DECEMBER 2016 2016512H31H

37.¢®MI A (&)

(b) BIBEREEBERKE (&)
FBESER
REBEARHELEARE FAEESERRARE

BERRRIKFNRENERASEE @ A
NAEELEMTMRERSRENSNZE -

EREGERRITERENERBR LEREST
HRERRL -

BRiEsIN AREEGRRITEEEAEZERBE
© HF - R2016F12A31H A& B/ AT ) AR
K& AR 1T 15 B 54 A3,037,000,0005% 7T (2015
#12H31H : 3,614,000,000/ 7T) °

TRAVRBEFEEEGRRAREITESRE
BB TERZIMBER - ZRDRBAKBE A
REKMNANZF AHRBESRAERORKIRE

TRERH - ZREFNELASHEERE - £ H
ERAEBHNEZREN RUREBIIRBE
MR MEFH -

Carrying
Total

undiscounted

amount at
31 December
2016
R20165F

3 months to Over

cash flows

1 year

1 year

MEFY HSRIBAN AREEES 1283184
ERAE EER  123fHF 3@AZLE BBIE  REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEz TEz FEz fEz TET
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ ¥ £REE
Trade, bills and other payables EX FRERAMENRE - 552,076 252,029 40,984 - 845089 845,089
Amounts due to non-controlling V€T TN
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—EMENAFE - 5,499 - - - 5,499 5,499
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE
- variable rate %8 2.35 3,077 167,011 329,023 184,647 683,758 667,644
640752 419,040 370007 184647 1614446 1598332
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

37.2RIT A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) IR EREBZEREE (&)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEELEE (F)

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 13 3months to Over undiscounted 31 December

interest rate  on demand months 1 year 1 year cash flows 2015
120155
MEFS  SRIEAR AEEES 12A318K
EAIx 2k 1Z3fER  3MEAZELF BRIE  REAE RafE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEL TETL TET TET TET TET
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ T4 &BEME
Trade, bills and other payables BX FRRAMENTE - 557,836 319,451 53,902 - 931,189 931,189
Amounts due to non-controlling RIFERBETE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—EBERRR - 7,080 = = = 7,080 7,080
Bank and other borrowings ROREMES
- fixed rate —ER 1.07 38813 62,375 77,900 - 179,088 178,271
- Variable rate — 28 2.37 49,121 84,205 192,39 162,533 483253 475,573
732,950 466,031 324,1% 162533 1685710 1672213

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end

of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value

(i)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,

amount due to an associate, and bank and other borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and

amount due to an associate approximates fair value.
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value (Continued)

(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 except for investment in life

insurance policies.

(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market

data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

inputs.

At the end of the reporting period, all of the Group’s investment in life

insurance policies is grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year and prior

year.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements
The fair value of investment in life insurance policies is determined based
on account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by

insurers.
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

38. EAKIE
At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016%12A31H #2015 12A31H
HK$'000 F& 7T HK$000 &L

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and equipment

39. OPERATING LEASES

As lessee

HEBYE BERREEEZ
BENERGEIERE
REELBEZEARAY 116,959 43,437

39. £ EHE
EAAFE A

2016 2015
HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 F/ET

Minimum lease payments paid under operating lease

during the year:

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

REEFEEHEMIANORERESH:

T REEY 34,370 34,483
W5 Ras 4,949 5,193
39,319 39,676

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future — R¥REHIAR  ANEB gt ] BUH 2B H S8 R K
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall ~ S{EFE 7 HAER T 2H B X £+

due as follows:

At 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2015
R2016512A31H F2015612 4317
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery buildings machinery
THREEY B R T REEY Bz Rt
HK$'000 F% 7 HK$'000 F& 7 HK$'000 F# 7T HK$000 Fi# T

Within one year 1£R 35,219 1,300 22,487 1,925
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ S2F & F5F A

(BEMEBEEA) 111,348 501 37,354 859

Over five years SEPA 193,098 - 91,570 -

339,665 1,801 151,411 2,784
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39. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to fifty years for land and buildings
and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no contingent

rental arrangement.

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during
the year was approximately HK$10,756,000 (2015: HK$9,919,000). The
related outgoings amounted to HK$600,000 (2015: HK$588,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in

respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.
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39. €EME (&)
tERFEMEA ()
LEREXHDAREREETHAE  THR
B RERORENES  ERENREFERT
s RN T T 1506 2 [ SARES R 25 I
NFIESF 2 M- W RARAR SR -

ERHEA

RRFRN AEERKEDEMRESOES KA
# (8 4 /10,756,000 7T (20154 : 9,919,000/
7T) » 5 B % 1 A600,000% 7T (20154 : 588,000
BIT) e

RIS AEERAFRAENED TON
RIBIERERANT -

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2015

1£R

Within one year

In the second to fifth year inclusive

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the

rules of the schemes.

FFEEEN (ERMFRERERN)

#2016%12831A 32015%12A31A
HK$'000 F%7 HK$ 000 F/87T
9,145 10,849
5,278 17,760
14,423 28609
40. RIKER TS

AEBERBBER %?ﬂh%?ﬁ&i—ﬁmﬁ
kA8 ([BEEERAREHE]) RIRBRFHIER
?ﬂﬂ@“**ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ$%aﬂﬁ%$ﬁ
) THAEARERNAKREETERE - EME
EMEENBYINAEEEESHERAEE -
18 58 R M FORR BR RAR NI A T A S EAR IR 5
B E L XA ENRNESHK -
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued) 40. BIRBRGTE (8)

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state- ZA&EBEE i AR E SR FRBZ A kb E
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by — BT 4 &M B SR RE M2k Eaaft izt 2l -
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute  A&EEEKEEFMOE TE D LLER TS
a certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. Z|{EABHMNES -AEEH ZZtEM — ST
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the IR EEHE R -

required contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which ~ R MEEE - B{E B & £ R KB F 5T 2 MR Ug iy
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to 3k N & K -+ 1tk 5/ IB I A B /EHIRL R 2R 4F FE 19

reduce the contribution payable in the future years. FEAT fEK o

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$56,270,000 2 A & £ [ 7£ 18 25 BR N 30 4 B9 3R K 43 I 51 &1 44t
(2015: HK$55,862,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and 7% %8 456,270,0005 7T (20154F : 55,862,000/

included in employee costs as set out in note 9. J0)  WE A IO E 2 B B AN ©

41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES 41 BB R BEEATHIRE
DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances (a) FAESE A LHVEERR

Details of the Group's outstanding balances with related parties are set out in A& E B A TR EBEHRFBHINNAGES

the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 27. B IS AR R R ME5E27 A

(b) Related party transactions (b) BEEALR S

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with R4 E AN EERHE A TET IR S :

related parties:

Name of related party Related party relationship Nature of transaction 2016 2015

BHMALER EERAEEA T HBR REME HK$’000 F %t HK$'000 F&T

REMEKEER AR Associate Sewage expenses 30,366 32,245
/N KR IRE
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions

Nature of transactions

RXeMHE

41.

(c)

=]
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FAEREEATHEKE (&)

FEALTRS

2016 2015

HK$'000 F& T

HK$°000 F 2T

The FM Group (note i)
FME B (f527)
The AH Group (note ii)

EEMA - s KT

Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts

Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts

AHSE® (47770) BEEML A B4 AKX B
The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
LFKE & (4 2tiii) EEME & B R KKE

Factory Co (note iv)
nal (feEiv)

Chinatex Group (notes v and vi)

i

g eE (fatvivi)

Notes:

(i)

RN IR S AN T AR5

Purchase of yarns, cotton, cooking oil and
foodstuffs

REBY - MRIE MR A R m

Sale of fabrics, yarns and similar items

EBEME - O REAUE®

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a master agreement
(the “2015 FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master Sales Agreement
(the “2018 FM Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18
November 2015 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by
the Group to the FM Group. Mr. Omar is a director and substantial shareholder of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The FM Group comprises companies which Mr.
Omar and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise or control the
exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings or control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM
Group are associates of Mr. Omar and hence connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 FM Master
Sales Agreement and the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co

wisz

(i)

183,354 211,783
160,263 167,163
257,132 206,186
3,542 22,053
29,130 19,032

7N A A) B Feroz Omarst & ([Omarst 4 1) R2013%F4
A19H k201511 A18A A S EHMFMERE H &
B4 @i R KBRS BIFT 42 % ([20154FFM
diHE R ) MEENFMAHEE R ([2018FFM
RIHEWZ]) c Omart £ RARBIIHEEZEMBE R
FIZESERFERE - RELTHHRA RAKAFZ
HiEA LT FM&EE 25K B A R 8E BHOmarst £ R E
BMEATRBBAIEZERAANRRAE EERIH S
FE[RI 7T {50 SRA% Il 7T (50 38 - B LA £ A FRORAE - i
ZENRMEZERABHKENAF] - ELFMEE 2
BX B AR AOmarft £ 2 B8 A+ il iR 4% E iR Al
RARAZBEAT BIE ETARRFELLAZ - 2015
FFMAB 35 E Wk R2018F FMAB THE s T8 N1 2
RHBRARRZ HEMERS
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41.

(c)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$230,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

The revised FM annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December
2018 for the 2018 FM Master Sale Agreement are HK$300,000,000 and
HK$300,000,000 as set out in the announcement dated 26 January 2017.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2017 in
relation to, among other things, the revision of annual caps for continuing connected
transactions and a circular released by the Company dated 8 March 2017.

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a master agreement (the “2015 AH Master Sales Agreement”) and a
renewed AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2018 AH Master Sales Agreement”)
respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November 2015 regarding the sales of fabrics,
yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani
is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The AH Group comprises companies which Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and
relatives individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50%
of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of
the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the AH Group are associates of Mr.
Hirdaramani and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The transactions contemplated under the 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement and the
2018 AH Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

41. BB R BAEAN LI E (&)

() BEALRS (&)
Wt (48)

()

(ii)

(&)

20155 FMAE S5 & 17338 2 AABR 5 20134F9 A1 H £2015
F12A31H - M2018F FM#A $5 & 15 % 2 Hi R F32016
F£1H18 E20184%12A31H »

AN N R HHEIR2013F4 A 198 2 R E P - 2015
FFMA I & 1% H2013F9 A1 H 2013512 A31H
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FYRFENFE LRSS FI/R77,000,000/ 7T
230,000,0007% 7T }2230,000,0007% 7T °
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ZREMREHEE2015F12A31B IEFE 2 FE LR
230,000,000/ 7T ©
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April
2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$150,000,000, HK$150,000,000 and
HK$150,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total connected transaction amount
received by the Company was approximately HK$160,260,000, which exceeded the
2016 AH annual cap of HK$150,000,000.

The revised AH annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December
2018 for the 2018 AH Master Sale Agreement are HK$300,000,000 and
HK$300,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement dated 26 January
2017.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2017
in relation to, among other things, the exceeding of the 2016 AH Annual Cap and
revision of annual caps for continuing connected transactions and a circular released
by the Company dated 8 March 2017.
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41.

(c)

Notes:

(iii)
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK") entered into a master agreement
(the “2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed LFK Master Sales
Agreement (the “2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013
and 18 November 2015 regarding the sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
by the Group to members of the LFK Group (i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). Mr. Ha Kam
On, Victor (“Mr. Ha") is a former executive Director and hence a connected person
of the Company for 12 months from 19 May 2016, the date of resignation of Mr. Ha
under the Listing Rules. LFK is 100% owned by a discretionary trust whose settlor
and protectors include Mr. Ha's relatives. Accordingly, members of the LFK Group are
associates of Mr. Ha and hence connected persons of the Company for 12 months
from 19 May 2016 under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under
the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$124,000,000, HK$372,000,000
and HK$372,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$372,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$300,000,000, HK$340,000,000 and
HK$380,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

The Company and ;TIE[EERET4 B R AR (“Factory Co”) entered into a master
agreement (the “2015 Master Services Agreement”) and a renewed Master Services
Agreement (the “2018 Master Services Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013
and 18 November 2015 regarding the provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory
Co to the Group. Factory Co is owned as to 51% by the brother of a former director of
certain subsidiaries in the Group, whom is a connected person under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Thus Factory Co is an associate of a connected person and deemed
to be a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 March 2016, the former director and Factory Co have ceased to be connected
persons of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the 2015 Master Services Agreement and the 2018 Master
Services Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Master Services Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 Master Services Agreement are HK$16,000,000, HK$49,000,000 and
HK$49,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$49,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 Master Services Agreement are HK$27,000,000, HK$21,000,000 and
HK$18,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.

The Company and Chinatex Corporation (“Chinatex”) entered into a material purchase
framework agreement (the “2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) and
a renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2018 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement”) respectively on 19 December 2012 and 18 November 2015
in relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials for the manufacture of
fabric, garments, whereas cooking oil and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the
employees by the Group from the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries).
Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group
are associates of Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of

the Listing Rules.
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RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Connected party transactions (Continued)
(Continued)

(Continued)

The 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from
25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$310,000,000,
HK$411,000,000 and HK$512,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$512,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018
for the 2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$100,000,000,
HK$200,000,000 and HK$300,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 18 November 2015.

The Company and Chinatex entered into a product and service supply framework
agreement (the “Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement”) on 19
December 2012 regarding the supply of textiles products such as fabric and garments
and dyeing service by the Group to the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its
subsidiaries) commencing from 25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015.

Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group
are associates of Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Product and Service Supply
Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015
for the Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement are HK$150,000,000,
HK$170,000,000 and HK$190,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$190,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2012.

There is no renewal of Product and Service Supply Framework Agreement after its

expiration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBERRME

41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

during the year was as follows:

=]
31 DECEMBER 2016 2016%12A31H

41. BB BEAEA T HWIHE (&)

(d) EEEIEAE K H
REFESERAMEEEEABNOFHAT :

Fees ik
Short-term benefits 2 HEA
Post-employment benefits HREEH
Discretionary bonuses miEEe

Equity-settled share-based payments

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”).
The Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are

concerned.

2016 2015

HK$'000 F# 7 HK$000 % 7T
1,229 1,250

4,174 3972

36 32

1,525 1,217

51 578

7,015 7,049

EERTIEEBEABZHERESTE2RAAA]
ZEEBEE BEHNRRRALRMISAETM
EE YHFMEESEMN-

(e) MEMPBEREERETHRS
AN SR AT FTE M AT IR R R B X B e o B B
EESMERE  HRENRTH R TEEAY
ENNER (5 [EAER]) T8 - ARAES
RA ESRAAEEETHERINDERE
BABYE=F-
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41. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC
(Continued)

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw

materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$468,746,000 and HK$273,071,000
(31 December 2015: HK$331,877,000 and HK$277,024,000) respectively

are placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2016.

42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Company published an announcement on 26 January 2017 in relation
to the exceeding of the annual cap for the sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and
garment parts by members of the Group to members of the companies
which a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and his associates control, under a master
sales agreement dated 18 November 2015 and entered into between
the Company and that individual (the “2016 AH Annual Cap”) and the
revision of annual caps for continuing connected transactions. A circular
containing, amongst other matters, (i) a letter from the Board; (ii) a letter
from the independent Board committee containing its recommendations to
the independent Shareholders; (iii) a letter from the independent financial
adviser containing its advice to the independent Board committee and the
independent Shareholders; and (iv) a notice of the extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) was dispatched to the Shareholders on 8 March 2017.
An EGM was held on 23 March 2017 to resolve the matters concerning the
exceeding of the 2016 AH Annual Cap and the revision of annual caps for
continuing connected transactions. Details of the exceeding of the 2016
AH Annual Cap and the revision of annual caps for continuing connected
transactions are set out in annual report note 41(c) “Connected party

transactions” of the consolidated financial statements and in the Company’s

announcement dated 26 January 2017 and circular dated 8 March 2017.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
BRRER

Listing : Listed on the Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

since 20 April 1988
Stock Code : 420
Board Lot : 2,000

Shares Issued 1,205,026,960

Financial Calendar 2016

Financial year ended

Interim results announced

Annual results announced

Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

Annual General Meeting

Register of members closed for
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend

Distribution of dividend

2017 interim results to be announced

Shareholder Services

31 December 2016
18 August 2016
23 March 2017
19 — 22 June 2017

22 June 2017
57 July 2017

21 July 2017
End of August 2017

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,

please contact the Company’s share registrar:

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations

Ms. Charmaine CHENG

Joint Company Secretary,
Deputy General Manager,

Corporate Governance Department

Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung

New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 6267

Email pr@fshl.com
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Global Network + IZEBRAFZK

FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BHEX (KE) BRAF

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong

BRHREREEIE29-395%
KRBT R AREAECE

Tel &7 +852 2485 1881

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

BHEFERTIHERE BT SERNBE/NARE © it - EFFBREERETHAEwww.fshl.comR

Ho Chi Minh City | Seoul | Shanghai , Singapore | Tokyo
AR EL b= g R

Production facilities are set up in the following countries:
RTIIBREREEERE:

China R Indonesia R Sri Lanka

oy Enfe HrEREE+
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